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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Corporate Information

A EH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Li Haogang

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Ms. Lu Xiaoling

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chiu Ngam, Chris

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

Units 1801, 18th Floor, Tai Yau Building

181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN THE PRC
Agricultural Bank of China (Xinjiang Corps Branch)
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

(Xian Hi-tech Industrial Zone Branch)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN HONG KONG
Wing Lung Bank
Bank of China (Hong Kong)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
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Bermuda

COMPANY WEB SITE
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Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
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Ms. Lu Xiaoling

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Chairman)

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement

ETRHE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Golden Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2009 (“the year”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group's revenue
increased by 80% to HK$542 million. The Group's operating
profit for 2009 was HK$159 million, increased by 31% from
HK$121 million in 2008 (being operating profit excluding the
provision for impairment of goodwill). Net loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$46 million for 2009
compared with HK$545 million in 2008. The Board does not
recommend the payment of any dividends for the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal business activity of the Group is mainly engaged in
the operation of department stores in North-western China.

Based on our new strategy implemented in 2008, we have
successfully consolidated of our business in operating of
department stores in North-Western China which was one of
the highest growing region in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"). Having done that we have led the Group to sustain the
economic crisis in the year of 2009 and still reported growth in
business. This strategy will continue to provide contribution to
the Group and further acquisition opportunities will be solicited.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFREHRE

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECT

Recently, the PRC government implemented various monetary
policies and fiscal stimulus packages to drive domestic
consumption and stimulate the economy. Having considered this
advantage, the Group would continue exploring opportunities
in the operation of department store by acquiring existing
Century Ginwa department stores and expanding Century Ginwa
geographically in the PRC. The Group also plans to reinvent and
remodel its stores to further enhance the stores image and to
improve productivity by the more efficient use of the available
floor space. Meanwhile, the Group would introduce more
famous international brands to further enhance its market status
and maximise shareholder value. The Group strongly believes
that the business strategy of Century Ginwa could eventually
lead the Group to become one of the top tier department stores
operators in the PRC.

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my deep thanks to Mr. Hu Yangxing, the
former Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and my fellow
directors for their valuable contribution during the difficult year
2009. | would also like to thank you for the commitment made
by all the employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. | and on behalf
of the Board would also like to extend my sincere thanks to
our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and business
associates for their continued strong support.

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 20 April 2010
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Due to the acquisition of 76.43% equity interest in Century
Ginwa, the Xian Bell Tower store, was completed in August
2008. The store has started its contributions to the Group, with
inclusion of full year sales performance in 2009 and benefited
from the implementation of a wide array of measures and
policies that aim at promoting domestic consumption and
expediting economic growth, the PRC economy posted moderate
growth, hence:

i) The turnover of the Group for the twelve months ended 31
December 2009 increased to HK$542 million compared to
HK$301 million for the last period, representing an increase
of 80%.

i) The gross profit of the Group increased to HK$383 million
compared to HK$205 million of the last period. The gross
profit margin of the Group for the twelve months ended 31
December 2009 improved to 70.7% from 68.0% of the last
year due to the improvement of sales mix.

iii)  The Group's operating profit for 2009 was HK$159 million,
increased by 31% from HK$121 million in 2008 (being
operating profit excluding the provision for impairment of
goodwill).

iv) In 2008, the impairment of goodwill in respect of the
acquisition of Century Ginwa Joint Stock Company
Limited amounted to HK$605 million. The business value
of this subsidiary was based on the valuation reports
issued by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL"), an independent
professional valuer. The decision to provide for impairment
of the goodwill was made by the Board after taking into
consideration the RHL's reports and the severity of the
global financial and economic crisis. No such impairment
was made in 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

v)  The finance costs for 2009 were HK$161 million (2008:
HK$46 million). Higher finance costs in 2009 were
attributable to the full year inputted interest expenses
incurred on the convertible bonds and certain non-recurring
expenses incurred on bank loans.

vi) The Group's loss for the year and net consolidated loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company were
HK$32 million (2008: HK$540 million) and HK$46 million
(2008: HK$545 million) respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, net current liabilities and total assets
less current liabilities of the Group amounted to HK$1,049
million (2008: HK$1,037 million) and HK$732 million (2008:
HK$696 million) respectively. As at 31 December 2009, the
Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$89
million (2008: HK$90 million). The current ratio of the Group as
at 31 December 2009 was 0.16 (2008: 0.16). The gearing ratio,
being the bank and other loans divided by the shareholders’
equity, as at 31 December 2009, was nil (2008: nil). The capital
raising activities during the year are disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Department Store Operations

The Group successfully consolidates its business in operation of
department stores in Northwestern part of China. At present,
the Group operates two department stores in Xian and one
department store in Urmugi, the PRC. It can be proved that the
business strategy implemented in 2008 was successful. Under
the economic crisis in 2009 the business still achieved a double
digit growth.

v —ZEZNF2YBHERB
161,000,000/ 70 (=T Z N\ F:
46,000,000 7L) c ZETNF 2
VS BRER ETERARATER
BEREEZE2FHENETHER
RITERELEETIIEKEERM
ﬁo

Vi) AEBARFEEEREAAR
REEEEEEEBREY Jz%
32,000,000t (Z T N\ F:
540,000,000/ 7T ) &46,000,000
Bt (Z = Z )\ 1 545,000,000
BIT) °

REBEESRBHER

RZZEENF+_A=+—HB" XK
SEZRBHABEFERRBREERR
BBaED A A1,049,000,000/8 T
—EF )\ :1,037,000,0005 7T )
732,000,000 L (ZFZT )\ F:
696,000,000/ 7C) - R_ZEZNF+=
A=+—RB AEEZzHEeEE:E
15#%7%89000000,%7“_??)\@

90,000,000 7T ) ° ZENF+ =
A=4+—8" $E@Zuw§bﬂirt_’ro16
ZEZTNFE:016) RZEZTNF

+=—A=+— EZ§$E1T L& (BN4R
TREMEFRBRUREEZ) AT (=
TZENF B) FHAFEEETH
E BRI F28FHE -

£ JE)

BEQRXEK

$§%@Jﬁlﬂ BTHEALNZAE
RAEEK- B AEERPEAELZ R

SBAREDR J#&%WF?&-F?EEQ

A RER_ZETN\FEEIRHER
HGRT) - & 5_77H¢Hjiﬁ%rﬁfl

7&%'1@%?%%1&% B HF -

b
#
#
_
B
B

TESRERABRAR




=)
(=]
(<]
(]
-
T
o
o
()
[
]
=]
<
c
<

CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

The Group still incurs a loss is mainly due to the heavy burden of
finance costs which does not result from the department store
operations. On the one hand there are non-recurring bank loan
interests and on the other hand the inputted interest on the
convertible bonds also smears the results. The Board is confident
to improve the borrowing mix of the Group and will reduce the
finance costs in the coming year.

The Board believes that with the continuous improvements of
standard of living in the PRC and the implementation of various
monetary policies and fiscal stimulus packages to drive domestic
consumption, operation of department stores is an attractive
industry in the PRC in the near future.

Corporate Restructuring and Introduction of Investment
Fund

From the continuous effort of the management to improve its
operations and promotion of corporate governance, the Group
had successfully signed a Memorandum of Understanding with
an investment fund — Hony Capital as a strategic investor on 20
February 2010.

Hony Capital is an investment fund which is structured as an
exempted limited partnership established in the Cayman Islands.
Based on the limited partnership interests of Hony Capital,
Legend Holdings Limited, via its wholly-owned subsidiary, Right
Lane Limited, is the single largest investor in Hony Capital, with
a holding of approximately 14.3% of the value of the fund. In
addition to Legend Holdings Limited, Hony Capital has 75 other
investors with interests ranging from 0.02% to 7.15% of the
value of the fund.

Merger & Acquisition

As mentioned in 2008 Annual Report, the Group will continue
to explore other business opportunities in acquiring department
stores in the PRC. As a further step, the Group has signed
a Memorandum of Understanding in acquisition of three
department stores in Xian, the PRC, on 20 February 2010. If the
transaction can be completed, the Board believes that having
a network of six department stores, will enhance economies of
scale in operations and revenue contribution to the Group.
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BANKING FACILITIES
The Group's banking facilities are disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 33 to the
financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group’s operation of department stores
earned revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. Renminbi was
relatively stable although there was an appreciation pressure
during the year. The Directors considered that the Group’s
exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate was minimal,
and accordingly, the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purpose.

SEASONAL OR CYCLICAL FACTORS
During the year, the Group’s business operations were not
significantly affected by any seasonal and cyclical factors.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group employed approximately
1,000 (2008: 1,200) full time employees including management
and administrative staff. Most of the employees are employed in
Mainland China. The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary increments are assessed based on both individual's and
Company’s performance, professional and working experience
and by reference to prevailing market practice and standards.
Apart from the general remuneration package, the Group also
granted share options and discretionary bonus to the eligible
staff based on their performance and contribution to the Group.
The Group regards quality staff as one of the key factors to
corporate success.
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Biographies of Directors

EEBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin, (“Mr. Choon”) aged 42, was
appointed as the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 8 March 2010. Mr. Choon has over 19 years
of experience in finance, mergers & acquisitions, and corporate
restructuring and held management positions in various listed
companies. He had worked for one of the Big Four international
accountancy firms and another prestigious CPA firm and had
also been engaged in various mergers and acquisitions exercises.
Mr. Choon was the General Manager of Finance Department
of Guangnan Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1203) during its
restructuring exercise from 1999 to 2001. Mr. Choon also has
experience in department Store business in the PRC and was the
director of the jointly controlled entity Wuhan Plaza and also
held the position of Deputy Chief Operating Officer from 2003
to 2007 of Junefield Department Store Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 758).

Qu lJiaqi

Mr. Qu Jiagi ("Mr. Qu”), aged 51, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 11 August 2007. He is currently
Vice President of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (“Ginwa
Enterprise”) and General Manager of Century Ginwa Joint
Stock Limited Company (“Century Ginwa"), both companies are
connected persons of the Company as defined under the Listing
Rules. Mr. Qu joined Ginwa Enterprise and Century Ginwa Group
in 1999. Before that, Mr. Qu worked with several other large
department stores and shopping malls in Xian, China.

Mr. Qu has nearly 30 years of working experience in department
store business. Mr. Qu received Management education and
training in Mainland China. He also received training in High
Level Business Administration from the Open University of Hong
Kong. He was awarded the “Shaanxi Province Outstanding
Young Entrepreneur” in October 2000 and “China Professional
Operational Management Master” ( /B 7 2% 4€ & KA ) in 2005.
Mr. Qu is also a Representative of the 13th and 14th Xian City
People’s Assembly.
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Li Haogang

Mr. Li Haogang (“Mr. Li"), aged 45, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 11 August 2007. He is
currently Assistant to President of Ginwa Enterprise (Group)
Inc. ("Ginwa Enterprise”) and General Affairs Assistant General
Manager of Century Ginwa Joint Stock Limited Company
("Century Ginwa”), both companies are connected persons of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules. Mr. Li joined
Ginwa Enterprise in 1988. Before that, Mr. Li worked with
Shaanxi Jin Run Property Development Company.

Mr. Li has rich experience in corporate operations, management
and business development. He was awarded the “Xian
City Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” in 1996 and “The
Seventh Year Shaanxi Province Excellent (Outstanding) Young
Entrepreneur”.

Sha Yingjie

Mr. Sha Yingjie (“Mr. Sha"), aged 52, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2007. He is
currently the Financial Controller of Century Ginwa Joint Stock
Company Limited (“Century Ginwa"), a connected person of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules. Mr. Sha joined
Century Ginwa in 1997 and was appointed Financial Controller
and Assistant General Manager in 2004 and 2009 respectively.
Before Mr. Sha joined Century Ginwa, he once worked as
Financial Controller of the Supply Station of XiBei Electrical
Engineering Company Limited, and the Financial Controller of
Xian Taiwan Hotel.

Mr. Sha has more than 20 years of working experience in
commerce and finance. Mr. Sha received Management education
and training in Mainland China. He also holds a master degree
in business administration from the Open University of Hong
Kong. He was awarded China Career Manager in June 2003 and
was appointed Taxation Practice Review Inspector by Xian Tax
Bureau in the PRC in 2006. He obtained a chief financial officer
qualification certificate in respect of business administration
positions in 2007 and was appointed as Taxation Practice Review
Inspector of the local taxation bureau in Lianhu District, Xian in
2009.
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Biographies of Directors
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Lu Xiaoling

Ms. Lu Xiaoling (“Ms. Lu”), aged 53, was appointed Executive
Director of the Company on 1 February 2009. She is currently
the Chief Representative of the Xian Representative Office of
China King Management Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), and Director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc.
Ms. Lu once worked as Chairman and General Manager of Guo
Da Financial Management Consultancy Company Ltd., and Chief
Accountant of Xian Xiang Yu Aero Technology Development
(Group) Company Ltd.

Ms. Lu has more than thirty years of commerce, financial and
various management experiences. Ms. Lu received both domestic
and overseas financial management education and training. She
is an associate member of China Association of Chief Financial
Officers. She has obtained professional qualifications including
China Senior Accountant, International Finance Manager of
Cambridge, England, China Certified Project Data Analyst,
International Finance Manager, China Certified Tax Planner,
Senior Executive Independent Director of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, and China Senior Career Manager.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (“Mr. Chan"), aged 56, was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 24 September 2004. Mr. Chan graduated with
a bachelor degree in Social Science (Economics) from the
University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1978. Mr. Chan
has over 25 years’ experience in marketing and business
development. Mr. Chan is also an Executive Director of China
Solar Energy Holdings Limited and Mobile Telecom Network
(Holdings) Limited, both of which are listed companies in Hong
Kong.
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Biographies of Directors

EEBEE

Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing (“Mr. Fu”), aged 41, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 8
January 2007. Mr. Fu is currently an independent non-executive
director of Hao Wen Holdings Limited (Formerly known as
"Everpride Biopharmaceutical Company Limited”), a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor degree in science with major
in accounting of Bemidji State University, USA and is a member
of both American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
15 years of experience in auditing and accounting field.

Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 40, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 25
September 2008. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants; and The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. He has over 16 years of experience in accounting
and finance. At present, Mr. Tsang runs his own firm and
practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of K.P.I.
Company Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited) which is engaged in retail business in PRC
and ABC Communications (Holdings) Limited (a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) which is engaged
in the business of financial information services.
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ Report

EETEHRS

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements for year 31 December
2009 (the “year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2009 are set out in the financial statements on pages 35 to 167.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2005, the period ended 31 December 2006
and for the three years ended 31 December 2009 and the assets
and liabilities of the Group as at 30 June 2005 and 31 December
2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 are set out on page 168.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

14

EERAREHE _TTAE+=A
:+ AIERE ([AFEE]) 2 8%
AEERHBEE-

IERXHK
ARRZEBEBHRRE LR - 5B
DEZ EBEBHHREHREM 4 -

EEBERKRE
REERRAFEZwFRRERE &
AAREAEER _ZTTNLF+_A
=+ —HZHEMRREREISEI67TE
ZIEHREA -

EETERENAFEIRMEE -

MBEHRE
AEERREE-_ZEZTRAFA=ZTHLE
FE -Hz_ZEEXF+-A=+—H
IRk E TSN F T+ A =+—
BIE=BEEae%E UWREAEE
RZEEZRFAAA=ZTH ZZEEEX
F _ETLFE _TT)N\FER_ZT
NF+—A=+—HZ2EEHBEH
TEHMNE168H °

IR 2
ARBBARRNEERNZE
PARA 5 ¥R AR M £ 28

EACE



Directors’ Report

EETEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution of
the Company passed on 6 November 2001 (the “Share Option
Scheme”), the Company may grant options to the eligible
person of the Company to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time excluding for this purpose shares
issued in the exercise of options for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to selected eligible person for their
contribution to the Group. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 6 November 2001, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended according to the Share Option Scheme, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date. Eligible person of the Share
Option Scheme includes the followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(i) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iv) any person or entity whose service to the Group or business
with the Group contributes or is expected to contribute
to the business or operation of the Group as may be
determined by the directors from time to time.

The exercise price of the share options shall be the higher of
(i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant (subject to Scheme adjustments).

Details of movements in share options of the Company are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ Report

EETEHRS

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2009, no reserves (2008: HK$Nil) were
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders. In
addition, the share premium of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$388,578,000 (2008: HK$386,673,000), may
be distributed in form of fully paid bonus shares.

CONVERTIBLE BOND

Details of movements in convertible bond of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by
an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of the
Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s and
the employee’s contribution are subject to a cap of monthly
earnings of HK$20,000 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in PRC, the
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in PRC. The Group contributes to retirement plans at
specified percentages of the basic salaries of its employees, and
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
post-retirement benefits. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report

EETEHRE

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group during
the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report were:—

Executive Directors

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Hu Yangxiong
(Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Li Haogang

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Ms. Lu Xiaoling

(appointed on 8 March 2010)

(resigned on 8 March 2010)

(appointed on 1 February 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

In accordance with the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, the newly
appointed Executive Director, Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin is subject
to re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, Mr. Qu
Jiagi, Mr. Sha Yingjie and Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing will retire
from the office of directorship by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ Report

EETEHRE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (Continued)

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing and Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai, and considers them to be independent for this
year. The Company considers that each of such Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent from the Group
based on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
on pages 10 to 13 of the annual report.

None of the directors had entered into any service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The details of connected transactions of the Group which were
discloseable under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed
in note 34 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

EETEHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO") which were required to be entered into
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"), were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each

Name of director Nature of interests

EEnE EEME
Mr. Sha Yingjie Personal interests
WE Gt (PN F
Ms. Lu Xiaoling Personal interests
BERLL (EPN: Fa

EERFRETHRAERARQTF
Hg;@éﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁ&ﬁ%ZEé

R-ZZTNF+-_A=+—8 ARQ7
EELRTBTRABRARFHEME
A AR (ERLBBAPESNE
EHELRBMERD ([EFRBEER])
EXVER) Z Bt~ HE R RESTH
BEEAHAREBEES LM ERDI352
GzREMEE2ELM 2 #aE M E
B EREES M EGRIIEXVEEET
KESDEMAMEARARNE R Z
BakER (BREREESFLAEKED
MR TR E FRA 2 Em M
B)RHRE EHRRE S ETH BT
ABEZETEFRZNEESTA (1R
TR MAMNEGRNRA LB
BENMEREIIWT

(a) FAATEREEO.1078 T 2 K17
FrRA:

Approximate

percentage

of the

Number of issued share
issued ordinary capital of
shares held the Company
FRIBE®RT MHAQFSHEIT
ERERBE RASOBEIH
1,024,000 0.09%
146,000 0.01%
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ Report

EETEHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Long positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each

(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had,
under Divisions 7 and 8 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFO"), nor were they taken to or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO, any interests or short
positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) or any interests which are required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules or any interests which
are required to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report

EETEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Interest in Share Options under the Share Option

Scheme

Name of grantee

ERAER

Mr. Hu Yangxiong
(Note)
AR E (A7)
Mr. Sha Yingjie
WE G Rt

Mr. Qu Jiaqi
R B A

Mr. Li Haogang

FWBEE

Note:—

Mr. Hu Yangxiong resigned as director of the Company on 8 March

2010.

All the interests stated above represents long positions. No
short positions were recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO as at 31 December

2009.

Date of grant

RHAH
15 Jan 2008

—EENF
—A+HRH
15 Jan 2008

—ET)N\F
—HAtHhA
15 Jan 2008

—EENF
—A+®AH
15 Jan 2008

—BENF
—A+HA

Exercise
price

TEE
HK$0.74
0.74787T
HK$0.74
0.74& 7T
HK$0.74
0.74/& 7T
HK$0.74

0.747& 7T

EERETETHAEBRARLNT
KRG HEARGKRES 2ER
RER (#)

(b) BREFE T 2BRERS

Outstanding

as at
1 January 2009
and
Vesting and 31 December
exercise period 2009
R-BEBAEF
—A—BK
= L%
+=-—A=+—H
SR RTES e R AT
16 Jan 2008 to 3,154,000
15 Jan 2010
—EENF—-A+ARAZE
—ZE-ZTH5—-A+HH
16 Jan 2008 to 2,000,000
15 Jan 2010
—EENF-A+TXRBE
—ZET-FEF—-HA+HhH
16 Jan 2008 to 2,000,000
15 Jan 2010
—EENF-ATARABE
—ET-TF—-A+HH
16 Jan 2008 to 2,000,000
15 Jan 2010
—EENF—-A+AAZE
—ZET-ZTH5—-A+HH
9,154,000

Afar: —

MEREEER T -TF=A/\BEHE
ARBEF-

LT BRI ARE RZ2ET
NE+ZA=+—8 ARAIREFFH
RE SIS E352ME T B EREE Y B0
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ Report

EETEHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of
the directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO, any interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
or any interests which are required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or are required pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the
SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2009, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
interests of 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the directors of the Company.

(a) Long position in the shares of HK$0.10 each

Name of
shareholder

Long positions/

short positions Nature of interests

BRRE® RE/ER

Long positions

EEME

Best Mineral Resources Personal interests

Limited ("BMRL")

RE PN £
Mr. Chen Jian Long positions Corporate interests
BRigx 4 RE NGIE
Mr. Li Peng Long positions Personal interests
FhrE ) (PN

22

RER (#)

BREXFBEBEEN RZETAFE+Z
A=Z+t—B ARBESFHERITEA
EMEREA T s  ARIERE S L
BEGIETRFESD # - HRIFE S L H]
ERPIBEREMREXEFREAR
AR EEMREERE (E&EREH MY
EROIEXVER) Z B tn RO & E
FONERRERER  XBEMEGARA
Ko Bt 32 i 2 AR AR M 2 - SR B ARIR RE
HREBEEROIEIS2EREMFENE
ROt A2 R eS  SRIRIRZE ST A
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(a) FXAREEREE0.1087T 2K %
ZRE

Approximate

percentage

of the

Number of issued share

Issued ordinary capital of

shares held the Company

BEERT

e 8T ERTREZ

EBRHBE BHES

317,464,072 (Note 1) 27.17%
(Kriz1)

317,464,072 (Note 1) 27.17%
(Kriz1)

4,090,000 (Note 2) 0.35%
(Krizz)
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EETEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the
SFO (Continued)

(b) Long position in the underlying shares equity
derivatives of the Company (as defined in Part XV of
the SFO)

Name of
shareholder

Long positions/

short positions Nature of interests

RREH RR/ER BREME
Best Mineral Resources Long positions Personal interests
Limited (“"BMRL")
B GV
Mr. Chen Jian Long positions Corporate interests
PR i 5T =9 NCIE £
Mr. Li Peng Long positions Personal interests
ZhEreE RE UG£
Partners Capital Long positions Personal interests
Securities Limited
BAEHZAERAA RE PN 3
Phoenix Capital Long positions Personal interests
Securities Limited
RAEF BB QA RE EUNG £
Notes:—

(1

BMRL held 317,464,072 shares and 1,602,635,849 share
related to their derivative interest under its own name as at
31 December 2009. Mr. Chen Jian held 100% of the issued
share capital of BMRL. As such, Mr. Chen Jian was deemed to
be interested in 317,464,072 shares and 1,602,635,849 share
related to their derivative interest by virtue of his shareholding in
BMRL.

The derivative represents convertible bonds (“CB") of the
Company. Under the terms of the CB, the conversion rights to
the CB cannot be exercised if, immediately after exercise of such
conversion rights into the Shares, the holder(s) of the CB and its
concert parties will trigger a general offer obligation under the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers and/or the public
float of the Company will be less than 25% of the issued share
capital as required under the Listing Rules after issuance of such
Shares.

Mr. Li Peng is interested in 4,090,000 shares and 221,600,000
warrants, each of the warrant confers the rights to subscribe for
new share in cash at an initial subscription price of HK$0.29 per
share (subject to adjustments).

209,388,390 shares represent the number of Shares
underwritten by Partners Capital Securities Limited. Percentage
calculated base on the shares as enlarged by the new shares to
be allotted and issued under an open offer dated 30 December
2009, being 584,120,426 shares.

FERKR (&)
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(b) RELGRETETABATZH
BROZRE (ERREFRHE
1FBI EXVES)

Approximate

percentage

of the

Number of issued share

underlying capital of

shares held the Company

EEXRT

e BRTREZ

HERGEE BRB

1,602,635,849 (Note 1) 137.18%
(#t1)

1,602,635,849 (Note 1) 137.18%
(Ktit1)

221,600,000 (Note 2) 18.97%
(Brst2)

209,388,390 (Note 3) 11.95%
(H15t3)

100,000,000 (Note 4) 5.71%
(#1it4)
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M
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BMRLIA A Bl % #55317,464,072
BERHOMSRETERERDZ
1,602,635,8490% J& 17 B ot 445
ABMRL 100% & 31T f AN © (A1 -
PR fi 2 A A B 7EBMRLZ A% 48
AER317,464,07208 % 15 M 3% K
HPTAER 21,602,635,8498% %
DB
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% ARRZARFREFE
M ETTIR AT AR E 2 25%E, 3
TR BINS1TE B e R -
25l 55 A4 4,090,000 % i% 1 &
221,600,00017 72 1% 1 75 7 ¥ 5 4
& BHORBEEMNEIRYS
REETRA70.298 T (AT FA
B)URSREFRMD 2R -
209,388,390/% I 17 15 F 1 K 75 3
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ Report

EETEHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the
SFO (Continued)

(b) Long position in the underlying shares equity
derivatives of the Company (as defined in Part XV of
the SFO) (Continued)

Notes:— (Continued)

(4) 100,000,000 shares represent the number of shares
underwritten by Phoenix Capital Securities Limited. Percentage
calculated base on the shares as enlarged by the new shares to
be allotted and issued under an open offer dated 30 December
2009, being 584,120,426 shares.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of the
Company are not aware that there is any person who, as at 31
December 2009, had an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any
other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company is interested in any
business apart from the Group’s business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and five largest customers taken together were less than 30%
of the Group's total sales for the year. The aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers taken together were less than 30% of the Group's
total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 28 to this report, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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Directors’ Report

EETEHRE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
was entered into or existed during the year.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Save as disclosed in note 33 to this report, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in any other litigation or
arbitration of material importance and there is no litigation
or claim of material importance known to the directors to be
pending or threatened by or against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s shares in the market as required under
the Listing Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Messrs. PKF acted as auditors of the Company up to and
including the year ended 31 December 2007. Messrs. PKF
resigned and Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was appointed as
the auditors of the Company on 30 December 2008. Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited audited the Company’s financial statements
for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 April 2010
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Corporate Governance Report
TERERRBSE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors' confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board reviews its corporate governance practices and
internal control policy and procedures from time to time in order
to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied throughout
the year ended 31 December 2009 with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, except for certain deviations. The corporate
governance of the Company for the year is stated as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The composition of the directors
during the period is set out in the Directors’ Report.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRBSE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. For the year ended 31
December 2009, Mr. Hu Yangxiong is the Vice Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the Management of the Company. The
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operations
of the Board, which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals and meets regularly to discuss issues affecting
operations of the Company. The Board believes that the current
structure is conducive to strong and consistent leadership,
enabling the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently. The Board believes that Mr. Hu's
appointment to the posts of Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer is beneficial to the business prospects and management
of the Company. The Vice Chairman ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
Vice Chairman is responsible for ensuring that directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information, in a timely manner.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
None of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company is appointed for a specific term. However, all the
directors (Executive and Independent Non-executive) are subject
to retirement at least once every three years under Bye-Law
87(1) of the Bye-Laws of the Company. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent for the year.
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OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD EEg2ER

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad IRECEEATAINEXEAIVEZE
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial T EZ@RTHETEEC S &
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in FEEEHEEFROKINA HEZF
pursuit of the Group's strategies objectives. According to CG ~ — R -RAFE BEFSTFTHLLTE S

Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly and T&€# AR ELELECLEEEHE
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at Z ¥ -ERHBEZ=Z—_ZTZTNF+=A
approximately intervals. During the year, the Board met reqularly =+—HIFFERIT2EFTe €% B
and frequently for the review and approval on the business of HRA&G BRZECSZLFHEZES
department stores. Details of Directors’ attendance of the Board, R EF2HBLEEHINNOT: —
Shareholders, audit and remuneration committee meetings held

for the year 31 December 2009 are set out as follows:—

Board Audit Remuneration
Meeting AGM & SGM Committee Committee
RERBEF
XER

ExggE RRENKAE EREEE FHEEE

Executive Directors

HITEE

Note 1 Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin - — — _
iz 3] BH A

Note 2 Hu Yangxiong 14/15 2/2 - 3/3
52 TAE

Sha Yingjie 15/15 0/2 2/4 -
W B
Qu Jiaqi 12/15 0/2 - -
R B
Li Haogang 9/15 0/2 - -
B

9 Note 3 Lu Xiaoling 8/12 0/2 1/4 -

§ H5t3 BERR

o

g Independent Non-Executive Directors

N BuasiEE

= Chan Wai Kwong, Peter 7/15 2/2 3/4 2/3

g Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing 8/15 1/2 4/4 3/3

s 1 28

2 Tsang Kwok, Wai 8/15 2/2 4/4 3/3

2 @ i

% Notes:- Ml —

=

: 1) appointed on 8 March 2010 1) RZE-ZF=AN\BEZEE

2 2)  resigned on 8 March 2010 2) R-ZE-TF=-_ANHAHE

E 3)  appointed on 1 February 2009 3) RZZBEZNE-_A-REZE
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all the
directors, all the directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2009.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that year. The
Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and
that judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has not set up a nomination committee. The
Executive Directors would consult Independent Non-Executive
Directors on any nominations to the Board and the Board would
review regularly the need to appoint additional Director with
appropriate professional knowledge and industry experience.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is responsible for forming the
remuneration’s structure and policy of the Group, reviewing
the remuneration packages of Executive Director and Senior
Management, including bonuses and options granted under
the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such remuneration is
reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their remunerations are
determined based on their experience and qualifications, the
Group's performance as well as market conditions.

The committee shall consist of not less than two members.
Currently, the remuneration committee consists of three
Independent Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong,
Peter, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary objective of the audit committee is to review
the financial reporting process of the Group and its internal
control system, oversee the audit process and perform other
duties assigned by the Board and make recommendations for
the Company to improve the quality of financial information
to be disclosed. It also reviews the annual and interim reports
of the Company prior to their approval by the Board. The
audit committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the audit committee consists of three Independent
Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Fu
Wing Kwok, Ewing and Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and two Executive
Directors, Mr. Sha Yingjie and Ms. Lu Xiaoling.

The audit committee has reviewed with management and Baker
Tilly the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited results for
the year ended 31 December 2009, and the unaudited interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2009 prior to their
approval by the Board.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A remuneration of HK$1.1 million was paid/payable to the
Company’s external auditors for the provision of audit services
in 2009. During the year, the fees paid/payable to the external
auditors for non-audit related activities, mainly regulatory
reporting services fees, amounted to HK$0.5 million.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound internal
control system and reviewing its effectiveness at least annually
to safequard the shareholders’ investments and the Group's
assets. During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Board was
assisted by the audit committee in reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system with no material deficiencies
identified. The Board and the audit committee have considered
all material aspects, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, risk management functions, as well as the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Group's accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget in the review. The Board
and the audit committee are satisfied that the Group’s internal
control system was effective and there was no significant area of
concern which might affect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The Group will use its best endeavour to implement changes to
further improve the Group’s internal control system whenever
necessary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication
with the shareholders of the Company. The Company has
established a number of communication channels to maintain
an ongoing dialogue with its shareholders and enhancing the
transparency of the Group. These include (i) holding annual
and extraordinary general meetings to provide a forum for
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board and
the Board Committees; (ii) distributing corporate documents
and releasing announcements to disseminate the Group's
latest information to the shareholders; and (iii) maintaining
the Company’s website to provide an electronic means of
communication with the shareholders and the public.

Shareholders and other interested par ties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’s website
at http://cgd.etnet.com.hk. The Group’s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group’s financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’s website and the
communication with its shareholders.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

RPN AR IE Sl YN
12/E, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

HEE T EDR168-2005

5l oW R KR EE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Golden Development Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Golden Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group”) set out on
pages 35 to 167, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2009, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B &% B HRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report

B

M % BT R &

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the
following issues:

(a)

As reported in note 2(b) to the financial statements, the
Group incurred a consolidated net loss from operations
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
of approximately HK$46,351,000 for the year ended 31
December 2009, had consolidated net current liabilities of
approximately HK$1,048,913,000 and a full impairment
of issued capital of HK$34,963,000 as at 31 December
2009. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent
on the continuing financial support from the Group’s
substantial shareholder in order to finance the Group’s
future working capital and financial requirements and
the Group’s ability to obtain new working capital from
prospective investors and to generate adequate cash flows
from its continuing operations in the foreseeable future.
The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result from a failure to obtain such
financial support and working capital. We consider that
adequate disclosures have been made.

As reported in note 18(d) to the financial statements, the
Group has prepaid HK$14,938,000 in output Value-Added
Tax in respect of customer’s gift cards sold in 2007 and
2008. The Group has been negotiating with the local PRC
Tax Bureau as to when the prepaid output VAT can be used
to offset the output VAT derived from the sale of goods in
future. The recoverability of this amount is dependent on
the outcome of the negotiations.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 April 2010

Andrew David Ross

Practising certificate number P0O1183
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Consolidated Income Statement

e W R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z-_ZTZENF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Tt &

Turnover

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other revenue and income
Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Provision for impairment of goodwill
Operating profit/(loss)
Finance costs
Loss before taxation
Income tax
Loss for the year
Attributable to:
— Equity shareholders of

the Company
— Minority interests

Loss per share
— Basic

— Diluted

EXE

HE KRR

ER

Ho A U a1 Je WA
HERDHRAX
—RRITHAX
R R E R R
mERR (BR)
MER
BRBE A 1R
Prig®i
rEERBER

MTH AL
A VNEINE S

— DR RER

BRER
—&R

— 85

Note

iog=3

10

The notes on pages 44 to 167 form part of these financial

statements.

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Represented)

—EENE —EENF
TH&T FET
(2%)

542,237 301,052
(158,808) (96,483)
383,429 204,569
97,203 122,044
(41,875) (27,596)
(279,325) (177,691)
- (604,653)
159,432 (483,327)
(160,951) (46,009)
(1,519) (529,336)
(30,188) (10,495)
(31,707) (539,831)
(46,351) (545,172)
14,644 5,341
(31,707) (539,831)
HK cents HK cents
Al B
(3.99) (53.62)
N/ATE A N/AT i F

FAAE167T A Z MEETI AN R 2 B0
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= A
e mElaEk
For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z-_ZTZENF+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (W& Tit &

2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EENF
M &t FERT FHEIT
Loss for the year rEEFE (31,707) (539,831)
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 HE = 11
Exchange differences on translation — # & &N B A &)
of financial statements of overseas  BAFSMEREL 2
subsidiaries ME N E R 149 4,711
Total comprehensive loss for XEEZEER
the year FLR-C] (31,558) (535,120)
Attributable to: BT ALRERL:
— Equity shareholders of /NI &S
the Company (46,202) (540,461)
— Minority interests —LHRRER 14,644 5,341
Total comprehensive loss for XEEXEER
the year HER (31,558) (535,120)

The notes on pages 44 to 167 form part of these financial 54451678 2 Wi &AM %Rz 2 26
statements. (%

(=2
(=3
o
~N
-
=
o
o
Q
o
©
3
=
c
<

CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

36




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R &

As at 31 December 2009 RM—ZZZENF+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Goodwill
Loan receivables
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Loan receivables

Amounts due from related
companies

Amount due from a director

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Amounts due related companies
Amount due to a director

Bank and other loans
Obligations under finance leases
Current taxation

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible bonds

NET LIABILITIES

(BT E

FRBEE
& & E
kS
F& 4 B R
EENTRE E

RBEE

e

IR Ui B R
H b & WK
FEU & 3R
& Us B8 58 2 A SRR

FE U T = RIR

EHIF R

RekReFE
B H

RBEE

J& A AR 3R

H At A 5K
FEf BB & A RIFRIR
e EE A
RITREMER
MEMEZEHK
REATLIA

RBREFE
REERARBAE

*RBAEE
AR 7R

BEFE

Note

g3

12(a)
15
16

25(b)

17

18
16

19
20
21

21

22
19
20
23
24
25(a)

26

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEBhF —EENEF
FTERT TAET
157,641 158,534
226,579 226,579
1,393,789 1,343,644
3,368 3,655
1,781,377 1,732,412
27,293 32,372
71,851 60,216
8,982 20,979
250 -

- 78

- 5,685

88,505 84,686
196,881 204,016
923,355 853,555
47,674 2,502
135 -
267,341 358,575
- 154

7,289 26,030
1,245,794 1,240,816
(1,048,913) (1,036,800)
732,464 695,612
767,427 706,913
(34,963) (11,301)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBERRE
As at 31 December 2009 RZZEETNF+=-_H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (W& Tit &

2009 2008
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
—EEhE —EENF
ok TET F&T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR G
Share capital &N 28(c) 116,824 115,824
Reserves EE (237,439) (198,133)
Total deficit attributable RATRREL
to equity shareholders of BB
the Company (120,615) (82,309)
Minority interests LPEHRRER 85,652 71,008
TOTAL DEFICIT &5 At 4 KR (34,963) (11,301)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on R-E—ZEFNA-_t+HEEEZH

20 April 2010. R T
Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin Sha Yingjie
BB AR PR
Director Director
EE BE

The notes on pages 44 to 167 form part of these financial  F44F 1678 7 Wi W ARE 1Rk k 2 26
statements. e
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Statement of Financial Position

2 N
As at 31 December 2009 R=—ZFEZENF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Tt &

2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZEENEF —EENF
ok TET FHTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets ETEEE 12(b) = -
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR 2K E 14 1 1
1 1
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments Ze RERMK 18 384 543
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B BB X B) 5 TE 14 463,916 736,693
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAEEFEE
15 H 21 44 3
464,344 737,244
Current liabilities RBEE
Accrued expenses and EAEBRAR
other payables H b FE TR 22 4,248 1,905
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE 14 7,605 7,656
11,853 9,561
Net current assets RBEEFRE 452,491 727,683
Total assets less current liabilities REEBAB ARG 452,492 727,684
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Convertible bonds A RN B 55 26 767,427 706,913
3
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) BEEFHE (314,935) 20,771 e
e
4
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAERGE 28(a) i
Share capital [N 116,824 115,824
Reserves ] (431,759) (95,053) w
«
P
TOTAL (DEFICIT)/EQUITY (4 RRAE (314,935) 20,771 g
2
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on N-E-—SENMA-+ORE=eH é‘ﬁ
20 April 2010. E % A A T3S o
Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin Sha Yingjie
HMEIAR kg i3
Director Director
EF EF
The notes on pages 44 to 167 form part of these financial EA4T=167E T W Ty A ISR E > 5
statements. 7o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e ® B X

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z-_ZTZENF+_A=+—HILFE

a
w
E
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The notes on pages 44 to

statements.
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167 form part of these financial

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (W& Tit &
Share-
based Statutory Total
Share Share Capital ~ payment Warrant surplus  Exchange Accumulated Minority equity/
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests (deficit)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NRBXH  RRER  RER4 28 [ +:74
e RBEE  EAREG EL L HE  EXRE  BiEE £ REEZ (BR4E
i3 F#n TEn i FEn T i i FEn Fin F#n T#n
At 1 January 2008 RZEENE-A-H %84 3078712 49,886 2032 2,285 804 7908 (107,788) 357,841 - 384
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR - - - - - - - - - 65,667 65,667
Shares issued for conversion of REATAREFEGZ
convertible bonds R 28(6)0) 18,490 68,313 - - - - - - 86,803 - 86,803
Shares ssued for exercise of HEREEAFERTL
share options it 28(0)f) 229 9,880 - (1,869) - - - - 10,303 - 10,303
Shares issued for exercise of warrants  SFERIEZETEETL
& 280l 20 70 - - (50) - - - 920 - 920
Equity settled share-based transactions MR ff 2 RER 5
- Amount recognised during the year  ~ERBAZEE - - - 2447 - - - - 2447 - 2447
~ Forfeiture of share options ~ R g - - - (163) - - - 163 - - -
Expenses paid for placement of shares B &RH 2B X - (162) - - - - - - (162) - (162)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AFE 2 EHBEE - - - - - - 471 (545170 (540461) 5341 (535,120)
Transfer from retained profits ERBRDET - - - - - 8344 - (8,344) - - -
At 31 December 2008 KZZZNE
T-A=t-H 115,824 386,673 49,886 2,447 2,235 9,148 12,619 (661,141) (82,309) 71,008 (11,301)
At 1 January 2009 i 115,824 386,673 49,886 2,447 2,235 9,148 12,619 (661,141) (82,309) 71,008 (11,301)
Lapse of warrants E 28(c)liy) - - - - (2,239) - - 2,235 - - -
Issue of warrants BaAkEZ 28 - - - - 2548 - - - 2548 - 2548
Shares issued for exercise of warrants  SERRIERETERTLZ
i) 280} 1,000 2010 - - (110) - - - 2900 - 2900
Equity settled share-based transactions W3 X 2 AR 5
- Amount recognised during the year  —ERERZ L E - - - 2553 - - - - 2553 - 2553
~ Forfeiture of share options ~ R g - - - (372) - - - n - - -
Expenses paid for issue of EORRER RARES
warrants and lapse of warrants KhzBH%H - (109) - - - - - - (109) - (105)
- Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AFFE 2 EFEEE - - - - - - 149 (46351 (46,200) 1464 (31558)
§ Transfer from retained profits ERARBER - - - - - 9417 - (9,477) - - -
£
2 At 31 December 2009 et 2V ES
E tZBZt-B 116,824 388,578 49,886 4,628 2,438 18,625 12,768 (714362)  (120,615) 85,652 (34,963)
]
£

FAAE167 B Z MR T AR R 2 B

,f/\ °



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERMER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z-_ZTZENF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Tt &

Operating activities

Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
— Depreciation
— Amortisation of intangible assets
— Fair value gain on the derivative
component of convertible bonds

— Loss on disposal of fixed assets

— Finance costs

— Interest income

— Provision for impairment of
goodwill

— Provision for impairment of
other receivables

— Provision for impairment of
trade receivables

— Equity settled share-based
payments

— Waiver of interest
on promissory notes

— Write-back of trade payables

Operating profit before changes
in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in trade and
other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due
from related companies
Decrease in amount due
from a director
Increase in trade and other payables

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due
to related companies
Increase in amount due to a director

Net cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

REXR
BT A5 18

P
—ITE
—EREEEH
— A BB ESFTE
Hn 2z ARE
g
—HEBRTEEEY
18
—UBER
—F B UA
—EERERE

— H B BORE
B
— RUYBRFOR(E B 1

— IR E AR
A2 A
—EAREBENEZ
R
—EARRED
EEESEBA 2

REBER

FEZRY
(18 )

P Ui BR R e At
J& WK 2 38
& U8 B8 58 1 R RIR
2 (), m

EWEERAZ
D

JE A5 R R Ko Ho A
AR E/ il
JE& 1 B8 38 2 A 5RIR
ZEm, Crid)
ENEEREAZ
Dl

RERBEEZ
BRE

BTSN

Note

g3

6(c)
6(c)
26
6(c)
6(a)
6(c)
6(c)

6(c)

5]

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEBhF —EENEF
FTERT TAET
(1,519) (529,336)
16,308 9,459
- 1,497
(9,058) (73,108)
1,927 583
145,478 37,563
(52,241) (22,086)
- 604,653

- 17

131 -
2,553 2,447

- (299)

- (4,936)
103,579 26,454
5,079 (6,082)
(11,730) (7,777)
(250) 60,006

78 29
70,874 11,504
12,771 (68,806)
135 -
180,536 15,328
(16,286) (11,112)
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z-_ZTZENF+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (W& Tit &

Note
Mt
Net cash generated from RETHELEZ
operating activities FHRE
Investing activities REZED
Proceeds from disposal of HERBTEEE
fixed assets Fr 1S 58
Payment for purchase of BE lmﬁ??ﬁ(lﬁi
fixed assets 12(a)
New loans made e R FIE
Repayment of loan receivables 1&1@%”&%& 16
Deposit refunded for acquisition of ~ UWEEKIE A E Z
subsidiaries REE®
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WK B AR Z
subsidiaries e mHFEE 27
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits & fHFEZE L
(& hn)
Interest received 2 A S
Net cash generated from/ RETBHELE
(used in) investing activities (FR)ZERE
Financing activities AEEE
Repayment of bank and other loans  {EER7T &
HthE»R
Proceeds upon exercise of 170 A v
share options Fr1S 38
Proceeds upon issuing of warrants BT a/uﬂx@é fe)
Ffr?%fﬁ’\
Proceeds upon exercise of TR *’?é““
warrants FT 15 k18
Expenses paid for conversion of AT A
convertible bonds [RENE-Fss
Expenses paid for placement of —ETELFRE
shares in 2007 Pefn 2 B
Expenses paid for issue of BITRRERE R
warrants and lapse of warrants RIEF R 2
B
Repayment of promissory notes BEAHER

Convertible bonds interest paid

Loan interest paid

Capital element of finance lease
rentals paid

Interest element of finance lease
rentals paid

Net cash used in financing
activities

42

ABBRESFENNE
ENERHE
ENBEHERS
BARE
ENBEHERS
UPSN=15v)

BMEETHEAZ

BERE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E22NEF —ETN\F
TERT TAET
164,250 4,216
318 620
(17.461) (17,169)
- (31,517)

12,000 40,538

- 13,200

- (123,248)

5,685 (5,685)
1,417 2,817
1,959 (120,444)
(127,866) (43,648)
- 10,303

2,548 -
2,900 920

- (2)

- (162)

(105) -

- (2,480)
(33,610) -
(5,980) (29,263)
(128) (84)
(26) (13)
(162,267) (64,429)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z-_ZTZENF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Tt &

2009 2008
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EENF
B aE FET FET
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HEeERBEESEEEE
and cash equivalents ZEEN D) 3,942 (180,657)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HZRER
at 1 January ReZEER 84,686 238,363
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEHRERH 2
changes 4 (123) 26,980
Cash and cash equivalents R+=ZA=+—H
at 31 December ZEERBEE
ZEEE 21 88,505 84,686

The notes on pages 44 to 167 form part of these financial — Z44ZE 1678 2 Miak AR ¥k 2 &
statements. (I
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

44

COMPANY INFORMATION

China Golden Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August
2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. Its shares have been
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 23 October 2000. The address
of its registered office is Unit 1801, 18th Floor, Tai Yau
Building, 181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. The principal activity of the
Company is investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000) unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors on 20 April 2010.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

ARER
FEEEZERERRAA (AR
AR -ZZEZTZTFNANBRE
BRE-NN—"FRRVERBEER
EAMKLAERRER AR
ERmHEe—EEEF+A=-+=
HREREBBBAERZIMABERAR
([BERFT)) BT AR R 27
MWERMUNE D BT HTBE 181
FRARBEANE181E1801E -

RARABRAERDSE — L™
o TEERDREER  HHE
RAIZETBEBHR B HRN
14

BR BRI AR BERRIATE
T([TET B AR
T-ZFENA_+HERESS
B T EE o

FTESFEE

(a) EHIEHH
ZEYBRREBERSE
BRZ(BEABMBREE
B (I KBEEB B WmEE
Ay | BEEESHAE
(X STMmAag])E M
ZHBEBEBZER (HEM
BIREER]) - (BBGE
Ay (I <B&gstER) 1)
kzE) BELARETRL
kBB (REER) 2 H#E
MERE - ZEWBHRERN
BETHXATES EMRA
(IEmREN) 2 BAEER
F-AEBRHNZESES
BERBA T o



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3 &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Cit &

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2009 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
the derivative financial instruments (see note 2(e)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 36.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors
have considered the future liquidity of the Group
in view of its net current liabilities position as at 31
December 2009. The Group incurred a consolidated
net loss from operations attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of approximately
HK$46,351,000 for the year ended 31 December
2009, and had consolidated net current liabilities of
approximately HK$1,048,913,000 and a net liabilities
of HK$34,963,000 as at 31 December 2009. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore that it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. Nevertheless, the directors are of the opinion
that the Group will be able to finance its future
working capital and financial requirements given that:

(i) the Group has been actively discussing with
prospective investors to obtain new working
capital,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3 &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Cit &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (Continued)

(i) the Company’s substantial shareholder has
agreed to provide financial support as is
necessary to enable the Group to meet its
liabilities as they fall due; and

(iii) based on a cash flow forecast prepared by the
Group’s management for the twelve months
ending 31 December 2010, the Group will be
able to generate adequate cash flows from its
continuing operations.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2009 on a going concern
basis. Should the Group be unable to continue to
operate as a going concern, adjustments would have
to be made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the financial
statements.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGEHBX(#)
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued) () MEARIRIDBRRER
(&

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into KB A RIMREREGE
the consolidated financial statements from the date BHRARZEGIFG B =%
that control commences until the date that control HleABEReRE-SEA
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any EHRERRXGEEBARGE
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions ERARER B NNRERES
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated MBRE2HBIIR -EBR
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from RSB AR E I E1E AN
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same B 7 &SI AARE R W
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that BRERERESR -
there is no evidence of impairment.
Minority interests represent the portion of the net DERRERIEANEE L &
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are BEENHRBAREEFE
not owned by the Group, whether directly or indirectly HmEhER Tmaedid
through subsidiaries, and in respect of which the MELRIEEREERES -
Group has not agreed any additional terms with the FRARERTMERDSHE
holders of those interests which would result in the AEKRSAEEERLE
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in RZERERUBEETOR
respect of those interests that meets the definition of wBITE N E G ERH N
a financial liability. Minority interests are presented BER-LBRERERREGE
in the consolidated statement of financial position MBARRARERAT L - &
within equity, separately from equity attributable to RARIRRELER D FE
the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority B-AEEEEZLVHER
interests in the results of the Group are presented on BanFelamkkizse s
the face of the consolidated income statement and W R RARARLH
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income IR RRE 2 AARFE
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total BERLEIERREE S

comprehensive income for the year between minority fic -
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

o
[=]
(<]
(]
-
T
o
o
()
[
]
=]
<
c
<

CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

48




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % | &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group's interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority’s share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising in a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(i)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2

50

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Goodwill (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At each reporting date the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

3 to 50 years
2 to 19 years

Motor vehicles
Machinery

5 to 13 years
20 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3 &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Cit &

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Fixed assets (Continued)
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
in the appropriate category of fixed assets when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in fixed
assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
note 2(f). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 2(i)(ii). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

(h) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each reporting
date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

2 FESFEE @)

(9)

(h)

HEEE (&

(i) FEHEEEH
(REERNSEDEIVR S gt
EEMEE  BIREM
XMz RENEEH
PrREz @t HEA
NEBEBRDZRAH
B o anE H it E % RE
Bt R A EEE
PiTEE A ) M 2 1R 5 B B
S o FHE FTS N BB
i 2 WA B iR
R REEF R
AR E D - A
SEEEANS A
M 18 25 AR P HARR

EREK EWRE

ERNEBRESFETLES
BEE MERBERHAIRE
B R S RO BB T 55 R
B -ERVNEDBELERNER
= A BN MR IR BA
B RITDA R
T ERBEEEAR-

53

o
#
#
_
o
o

PESRERABRAR




(=2
(=3
o
~N
-
=
o
o
Q
o
©
3
=
c
<

CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

—  significant changes in the technological,

market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3 &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Cit &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESITHE (&)

(Continued)

EERE(#

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i)

(i) FEWRRREMERN

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables
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(Continued)
Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
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trade and other receivables, whose recovery WREBEEE I
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case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3 &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

fixed assets;

intangible assets;

investments in subsidiaries; and

goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

58

2 FESFEE @)

()

EERE(#)

(i) BRtEEZHBME (&)
fisd B ERDRED SR - Al
GfhETZAEEEZ I
BlE e ttih BmEZ
AREeERERERS
BB REF MG

— ATEAKEEE
BEZAUKRE
BMAHXAER
& KA R AE
BEMETRZ®
= o REHEEA
EBER €K
T B BE 3R KA
AAARKRBEERE
REREIRME - %BE
BERBRMIEGE
A mzER
HREEEMZE
EZBERR-
fisi {0 Bl & EE P EE
EZBRERAE
ZAN -2 - VA
Hip&EMESL
ZBEmA - AR
BYELERER
AZRNEBEM
B(AREELE
fi7) 3R E AT U]
TR



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3 &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Cit &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2

60

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

()]

(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses (Continued)

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories, which represent merchandise held for
resale, are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandise is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Bt % 3 &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Cit &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGHBX(#)

(Continued)

(k) Trade and other receivables (k) FEUWERF R E b B R
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at JE U B 3k e B At B IR B IR
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less BEAnEER RERE
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see H AR ERBRBEEE
note 2(i)(i), except where the receivables are interest- BFTISBREARR (ZH5E20)
free loans made to related parties without any fixed (1)) MW WK AE T
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would BEATHBEEMETEESF
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated M2 BB KMBATE
at cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful BMERRIN - EZZEBNR
debts (see note 2(i)(i)). T R R AR AR

ERRAEREEATSEEA
BR (AMa20)0)) °

() Convertible bonds () TErRES
(i) Convertible bonds that contain an equity (i) BEZESHZTBREKE
component *
Convertible bonds that can be converted to A AR EEE A0
equity share capital at the option of the holder, RIEZH HERRA
where the number of shares that would be ERERAEEITR
issued on conversion and the value of the MEE MBI KE
consideration that would be received at that BT WRAEEESE
time do not vary, are accounted for as compound ERERSBHIEES
financial instruments which contain both a [ ER

liability component and an equity component.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I) Convertible bonds (Continued)

(i)

62

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component (Continued)

At initial recognition the liability component
of the convertible bonds is measured as
the present value of the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the market
rate of interest applicable at the time of initial
recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of a compound financial instrument are
allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised
in profit or loss on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.
The equity component is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the bond is converted
or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the capital reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the
bond is redeemed, the capital reserve is released
directly to retained profits.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESITHEE(#)

(Continued)

() Convertible bonds (Continued) () TR ESR (&

(ii) Other convertible bonds (i) E ol 2R EF

Convertible bonds which do not contain an
equity component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of
the convertible bonds is measured at fair value
and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments (see note 2(e)). Any excess of
proceeds over the amount initially recognised as
the derivative component is recognised as the
liability component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of the convertible bond are allocated
to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The
portion of the transaction costs relating to the
liability component is recognised initially as
part of the liability. The portion relating to the
derivative component is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently
remeasured in accordance with note 2(e). The
liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised
in profit or loss on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

V)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

(ii) Other convertible bonds (Continued)

If the bond is converted, the carrying amounts
of the derivative and liability components are
transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the
bond is redeemed, any difference between the
amount paid and the carrying amounts of both
components is recognised in profit or loss.

(m) Warrants

(n)

(o)

64

The issue of warrants will be settled by the exchange
of fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments. When the
warrants are subscribed, the portion of subscription
money with the nominal value of the ordinary shares
is recognised to the share capital account while any
excess of the subscription money over the nominal
value of the ordinary shares is taken into the share
premium account.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESFEE @)

(Continued)

(p) Cash and cash equivalents (p) BEeRBEELEEEHR
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank RekReFHEHERBER
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and THEERERFERES TR
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly RIT M B B A e 1 2 05 A
liquid investments that are readily convertible into FREEHmMa RS2
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an KE WEREABERER
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been REMeBEZREe BA
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank ARz BEREBRRTKA:
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form mERE T A B R =@
an integral part of the Group’s cash management AR-BEHEEGEEHERE
are also included as a component of cash and cash xms RekReFHEE
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated B BREAREEZREE
statement of cash flows. B UWEKASEREER

— B AR D 2 IRITEX

(q) Employee benefits (q) EEEF

(i) Short term employee benefits and (i) HHESEFREEHEML
contributions to defined contribution B IRE BB H
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, HE FRIEL -BFH
contributions to defined contribution retirement FR - ERBEHTORARG
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits EHEARIESERT
are accrued in the year in which the associated RABEREIRTEE A
services are rendered by employees. Where RIS 2 FE AN RET e fid
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect ENREEFTRELEL B
would be material, these amounts are stated at BEXE EF2EN
their present values. WEF R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company's
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Employee benefits (Continued)

(r)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGHBX(#)

(Continued)

(r) Income tax (Continued) (r) FrE8® (&
The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax BREEHBEEERABEZ
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences DEHIIME R BIRE TR
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, MeEBERER YL
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that BRI E ST HERT R
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided M (HEIIEHEE O 2 H A
they are not part of a business combination), and M) zEENBE URE
temporary differences relating to investments in ARERWNB AR ZERKE
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable 2 MinbRERTEE - 8
differences, the group controls the timing of the SEGEREERRE AR
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not ARERIEREEER 3
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of IR AT M = £ - AR IE
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they BRAEZEBNBBED-
will reverse in the future.
The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured ERRZELEHIBESEEIR
based on the expected manner of realisation or REELBEREDMEZER
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and SHRYFEFN UWER
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively HEERKER FEER 2
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and MEFE-BEMRBEEK
liabilities are not discounted. BEHTEERGTHE-
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is BERE BB SmATEL
reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to MIBEEZREE I AR
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient ZHETHERT R A
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax AEBEBRBEERERIL - EMA
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed EERBRAIEEE S IER
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient 7t v M B T LARE [B) -

taxable profits will be available.
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Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGHBX(#)

(Continued)

(r) Income tax (Continued) (r) FrE® (&
Additional income taxes that arise from the BREREDIK ZEINATE
distribution of dividends are recognised when the BRIk ERAREZEE
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised. BEHEREER -
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and RNEATH B 45 68 MR IE T TR 45
movements therein, are presented separately from BRUAREHEEHHB LS
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are Bl AT o i AN A Rl 3k
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax REEBERBEEAE NN
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company MIEEEENATBEEER
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set i B E AN EEIMEM - B
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and BT IE R E AT IE &
the following additional conditions are met: B MELEHIBEER

EURFER IR B EE

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the — RAHMNEEERAR
Company or the Group intends either to settle ME ANABHAEE
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle iR SRR ELEE R
the liability simultaneously; or KREREERENE
&5k

-~ in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - BEEREEERARE
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same = - fisl B2 AE (R B 75 1
taxation authority on either: BRWZFREHAR
—  the same taxable entity; or - EAB—ERXRBE

% B3k
g - different taxable entities, which, in each - REEEEER
E future period in which significant amounts 3k Y [B] 3R AE 7Y 18
£ of deferred tax liabilities or assets are BEXREEZE
expected to be settled or recovered, intend AeE 2 BHIEE
to realise the current tax assets and settle - TRERTE
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or BERFEEE
realise and settle simultaneously. SIMAMABIEE
= KB RVER B
BEEXRRE
REERBMNE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised
in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESITHEHE (&)

(Continued)

(s) ERHEMBER BRERK

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
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contingent liabilities (Continued) REE (&)

(i)  Financial guarantees issued (Continued) (i) EREBEEERZ)
The amount of the guarantee initially recognised XY ERBELTEW AR
as deferred income is amortised in profit or EREFESRERBRAR
loss over the term of the guarantee as income RN ERIE
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, HAIBREREUA - L
provisions are recognised in accordance with note O INEE A T Y RIR IS
2(s)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that T B - & 1R B R 2(s) (i)
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the WREE: (VBERESR
Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount ARAIBE R & ERK AL
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed EEITHER: R()mAK
the amount currently carried in trade and other SERENFIETEEE
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the iBAE AR RTE FE T BR K
amount initially recognised, less accumulated R E M ER AR AR
amortisation. EEE (A&EVERE

SRR BT EH)

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities (i) BEMEEREAEE
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of e AL B R ARA]A
uncertain timing or amount when the Group MEELE 2 EHARE

or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

RAMEEEL BITZ
AR A EEEBRAE
MRS - I AT HE HA]
S2fhst ez
FREB T EZEME
EERBEB -MREK
REEBEEEXE  &E
ARt BITEEMY
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

()

contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the customers. Sales
of goods that result in award credits for customers
under the Group’s customer loyalty programme,
are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the
sale of goods and the award credits granted. The
consideration allocated to the award credits is
measured by reference to their fair value. Such
consideration is not recognised as revenue at the
time of the initial sale transaction, but is deferred
and recognised as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed and the Group's obligations have been
fulfilled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGHBX(#)
(Continued)
(t) Revenue recognition (Continued) (t) WARR(E)
Commission from concessionaire sales is recognised SHEEEENRSTIRE
upon the sale of goods by the relevant stores. BAIEFEE S mEERA
/E\EO
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis MeEWARZTHAOBEANIEE
over the period of the respective leases. OETERARR -
Catering income is recognised at the time when the B ATE 1R 1 IR TS B FE R
services are rendered. ABR e
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the MEBKWAKBEEREMNER
effective interest method. EOREERFERAR-
Service fee income, including sponsor and service RSB KRA (BIEEB LR
fee income, administration income and credit card BEKRA THRARER
handling charges, is recognised when the relevant TFEEB)ERHABRE
services are rendered. BHERBAR -
(u) Translation of foreign currencies (u) IEBRE
(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) DEERZFEHK
ltems included in the financial statements of rEBGEER MG
each entities in the Group are measured using W&MYIIER  HRE&
the currency that best reflects the economic B R BB EZ A RIAE A AY
substance of the underlying events and BIE MIRIF 2 BB
3 circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional 2EE(TheEat])
s currency”). The consolidated financial AE-HAEMBRERIA
2 statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars BT ([2IEE]ZE
E ("presentation currency”). Bl o
é
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2 FESFEE#)

(u) Swias (&

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(i) SMEXZREEH

(ii) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are FRZINERZHIRZ 5
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling H 2 HNEETE R E o A
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and INESTEZBEEEER
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are BERRE AR ZINEG
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling EEXRE EXREE
at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses BaRRPER -

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are VAT 2 ARG 8 2 SN
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign IEBEERBEER
currency are translated using the foreign SHZIINEEERRE -

exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

AINEEHEY A RSB
IR ZIFEREEREA
BEREETAAEERZ
SNEEE R o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(ii) Foreign currency transactions and balances

(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the reporting date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

(w)

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’'s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

2 FESFEE @)

(v) fEERE
BERACEEEZHEX

(w)

B °

BEAL

AMBHREME

TIATRA

ITRRBEARE ZBEA

=+

(i)

(i)

(iii)

ZATHRENEESLMAE
BEB—ExZEPN
APEFI AR B A
SE 2 WP ERE
EFHEATE KR
PR E

AEFHEZATHZH
(&) 22 )
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

2

/8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 FESTEE @)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that
are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

- HKFRS 8, Operating segments

- HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial
statements

- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — improving disclosures about financial
instruments

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

- Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate

financial statements — cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate

- HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs

—  Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment —
vesting conditions and cancellations

—  HK(FRIC) - Int 13, Customer loyalty programmes

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 15, Agreements for the construction of
real estate

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 16, Hedges of a net investment in a
foreign operation

B BEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

80

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 23 and HKFRS 2 and
Interpretations HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 16
have had no material impact on the Group's financial
statements as the amendments and interpretations were
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.
The impact of the remainder of these developments is as
follows:

—  The new HKFRS 8 has no effect on the Group’s
financial statements.

- As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising
from transactions with equity shareholders in their
capacity as such have been presented separately
from all other income and expenses in a revised
consolidated statement of changes in equity. All other
items of income and expense are presented in the
consolidated income statement, if they are recognised
as part of profit or loss for the period, or otherwise
in a new primary statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Corresponding
amounts have been restated to conform to the new
presentation. This change in presentation has no
effect on reported profit or loss, total income and
expense or net assets for any period presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to
HKFRS 7, the financial statements include expanded
disclosures in note 31(e) about the fair value
measurement of the Group’s financial instruments,
categorising these fair value measurements into
a three-level fair value hierarchy according to the
extent to which they are based on observable
market data. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions set out in the amendments to
HKFRS 7, under which comparative information for
the newly required disclosures about the fair value
measurements of financial instruments has not been
provided.

The “Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)" comprise a
number of minor and non-urgent amendments to a
range of HKFRSs which the HKICPA has issued as an
omnibus batch of amendments. These improvements
have had no material impact on the Group's financial
statements as these improvements were consistent
with policies already adopted by the Group.

3 BRBEE25#)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

3

82

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition
profits should be recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment in the investee,
rather than as income. As a result, as from 1 January
2009, all dividends receivable from subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, whether out
of pre- or post-acquisition profits, will be recognised
in the Company’s profit or loss and the carrying
amount of the investment in the investee will not be
reduced unless that carrying amount is assessed to
be impaired as a result of the investee declaring the
dividend. In such cases, in addition to recognising
dividend income in profit or loss, the company would
recognise an impairment loss. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in the amendment, this new
policy will be applied prospectively to any dividends
receivable in the current or future periods and
previous periods have not been restated.

The adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 has resulted in
a change to the Group's accounting policy for
its customer loyalty program. Under the Group’s
customer loyalty program, customers are entitled to
convert their award credits into cash vouchers or gifts
upon the fulfilment of certain criteria as set out in the
terms and conditions of the Group’s customer loyalty
program. HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires such transactions
to be accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and that the consideration received in the
initial sale transaction should be allocated between
the sale of goods and the award credits that are
earned by the customers in that transaction.

The application of HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial statements
as the scale of redemption of award credits accounted
for a small portion as compared to the normal sales
transactions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 EXFERIBEWE
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of REBZIEEBRNTELE
department stores in the PRC. BERAAC
Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable EEBERKREARQRARFE A
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers, net AEPELE G2 E W R EKRK
of discounts and sales related taxes, commission from BRI RIS HETIE BT E
concessionaire sales and rental income for the year, and is BHEME EES WA - ZoiTm
analysed as follows: ik
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBEAF —ZEENF
FERT FET
Sales of goods — direct sales HmiHE—BEEHEE 198,105 117,695
Commission from concessionaire sales FF HIEHEH
(note) (B1at) 319,242 171,743
Rental income HE WA 24,890 11,614
542,237 301,052
Note: The commission from concessionaire sales is analysed as follows: Mt R EEEERe MO T
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EZhEF ZTETN\F
FET FHET
Gross proceeds from FerEEEEMSRERE
concessionaire sales 1,753,351 959,446
Commission from concessionaire sales 4 FEEHEM S 319,242 171,743
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 EXFRDEEE (&)
(Continued)
The Group's revenue and loss for the year ended 31 AEBBHE-_TZENF+ZA
December 2009 are mainly derived from the operation of —t+—BLEFEZREREBEE
department stores in North-western China. The operations ZRERFTREALILEEER
of the Group are subject to similar risks and returns and, Ao ANEE Z ZEmEEURER &
therefore, the Group has one single segment. The Group's Bl WAKERFZSE—nF R
revenue is substantially derived from its end customers in SE2HBHEBREHIREHRNA
the PRC and the Group's operating assets are substantially Bl &P MARBEZKEE
located in the PRC. Accordingly, no segment analysis by ERREBHOANRFE Bt - HE
business and geographical segments is provided for the —ETNEFETA=+—HILF
year ended 31 December 2009. X ERBEHEREB LR D2 D
B AT o
5 OTHER REVENUE AND INCOME 5 HihmkIWA
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$"000
(Represented)
% —ZEENF
TERT FET
(23])
Administration income 17T B A 9,517 2,459
Catering income /RN 6,533 5,554
Credit card handling charges ERRFESE 10,529 5,752
Fair value gain on the derivative ARBREFITES D 2
component of convertible bonds NAEWE
(note 26) (Htit26) 9,058 73,108
3 Interest income on bank deposits IRITF A B WA 870 1,994
% Interest income on loan receivables JE W & R A B WA 51,371 20,092
g Sponsor and service fee income EYLRRBEEKA 1,184 1,151
3 Sundry income Hab g A 8,141 6,699
£ Waiver of interest on promissory notes & , Z#EF| 8 2 2% - 299
. Write-back of trade payables (note) FETRR KB B (K7 aE) - 4,936
s 97,203 122,044
g
) Note: Based on legal advice in the PRC, the Group's trade creditors Wi REBEFEVEEER KAEERZ
g in the amount of RMB4,340,000 as at 31 December 2008 lost EZNF+_A=+—HOEN
E their right to recourse on the debts that they had not requested BR T A FR#£4,340,000T B %k &
% payment for over 3 years, recognising a write-back of trade BIEN WHEBB=F2HIE
=} payables of HK$4,936,000 in the consolidated income statement HERER-Hit - REBEE-Z
> for the year ended 31 December 2008. ENFFTZA=ZT—HIEFEN
2 4R A U as B T SR T BR R )
§ 4,936,0007% 7T °
8
s
5
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6 KBRBAEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREATEBE IR, (FTA)
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Represented)
—E2ENE —EENF
FET FET
(25)
(a) Finance costs (a) HMKEHR
Bank charges RITEMA 153 142
Credit card expenses ERREA 15,320 8,304
15,473 8,446
Finance charges on MEHERK
obligations under finance MBER
leases 26 13
Interest on bank loans wholly BARAFATBEER
repayable within five years WIRITERZFE 42,270 8,994
Interest on convertible bonds AMRESZHE
(note 26) (Hiitze) 103,182 28,556
145,478 37,563
160,951 46,009
(b) Staff costs (b) BEIRA
Directors’ remuneration EFHz (HiZ8) ﬁ
(note 8) 5,469 6,768 -
Salaries, wages and e I8K :
other benefits H e R 57,179 45,569 i
Pension scheme contributions RIRE FHEI R 5,716 3,162
68,364 55,499

T
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

6

86

(c) Other items

Auditors’ remuneration

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation

Exchange losses

Fair value gain on the
derivative component of
convertible bonds (note 26)

Loss on disposal of fixed
assets

Operating lease charges:
minimum lease payments
— hire of land and buildings
— hire of motor vehicles

Provision for impairment of
goodwill

Provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

HhEH
2 Gl
BB E#E
FEHEEMA
e
P& 5 E5 18
AR AR (E 5 07 & 21D
2 A EWER
(B75%26)
HEBRFEEZEIE
KEHEBH &K
MERK
— AL REF
—HBERTA
EENREREE
JE Uit B 2 K L b E UK
FORAE BB

6

BRBIATE 18 (&)

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Represented)

—EBAF —TENF
FET THIT
(2351)

1,330 1,140

- 1,497

158,808 96,483
16,308 9,459

152 1,121
(9,058) (73,108)
1,927 583
127,102 55,717
1,637 1,482

- 604,653

131 17




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
INCOME STATEMENT

Taxation in the consolidated income statement

(a)

represents:

Current tax - Hong Kong
Profits Tax

Current tax — PRC Enterprise
Income Tax

Provision for the year
(note 25(a))

Under-provision in respect of
prior years

Deferred tax (note 25(b))
Origination of temporary
differences

FERE-FRFNEH

FB B -FEEERMN
&

FRNEE (HiF25))

NEFEZBETR

EEBE (H2250b))
BEERE=R

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to
income tax on an entity basis on income arising in
or derived from the tax jurisdiction in which they

operate.

The Company is exempted from tax in Bermuda until

March 2016.

HmAEWNBERZFIBH

(a) HAWBZERZIIEAL:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EThEF —EFNF
FExT FET
27,963 10,231
1,937 -
29,900 10,231
288 264
30,188 10,495

ZAN/NCIDSENio) - UNCIPER s
&R 2 A RDEE R P
EERRAZFRAERLZ
WALRBEBEEBMNFAE

o

ARRAREHR RN EFRER
H EBEEZZ-—R"E=ZAR

1o
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

7
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived
from Hong Kong during the year.

The statutory PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate is 25%.
The subsidiaries of the Group operated in the PRC are
subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax as follows:

- BT EBE®WMAR QG (Xian Century
Ginwa Property Investments Company Limited)*
("Xian Century Ginwa”) enjoys a preferential
tax treatment as being a foreign investment
enterprise located in the western region of the
PRC, including a reduction in the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax to 15% until 2010.

- WERSIESEAREB®HLARALRE(Century
Ginwa Urumgi Shopping Mall Company
Limited)* (“Century Ginwa Urumgqi”) and tE42
© 1D B BR A &)(Century Ginwa Joint Stock
Company Limited)* (“Century Ginwa"”) are
subject to the standard PRC Enterprise Income
Tax rate of 25%.

* The English translation of the company names is for
reference only. The official names of these companies are
in Chinese.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised.

7

mEWBERZFIBHR (&)

(a)

HAWERAZHEEAR:
(&

AREERNFALELEEBE
ELXHREBFBZRA &
TEA/SBTBNEHEE-

FEMEECEMSHER
25% c AEERFBHLE R
BEMNP B EMSH M
BARIWMT:

- BRUELSTEEDE
Ror ([ARHLS
e RIBREMRHE
FERE NI E R
NEERBEE B
REARMAEREEE
15% WHEAZE =T —
TEEe

- HESIEEEARERY
PFOBERAR ([
SESBARE]) kit
LR HERAD A
(Mt &) )Rz
PRI EMSRE25%
BH

* RARERXES EHREZ
ZERAHIEREHL A X

RN RIZAHERARNEE
BEXEREE 2 HHE M

7 | At
KFrH-



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

HmEWBRRZFIBE (&)

(b) BB ERFE 2 HIAX

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

loss at applicable tax rates: REEEBEENAT:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Represented)
—EEAE —EENF
TEx FHET
(2751)
Loss before taxation R B A& 1R (1,519) (529,336)
Notional tax credit at the B A5 AT S 18 1% 3 A
applicable tax rate of 25% i E25%
(2008: 25%) on loss before (ZBEZNF :25%)
taxation AEZEBETIERS (380) (132,334)
Tax effect of non-deductible PRI X H 2 BB 2
expenses 31,245 144,564
Tax effect of non-taxable BARMM S 2 HBT 2
revenue - (60)
Tax effect of temporary EHRRAERERE Y
differences recognised MG g 288 264
Tax effect of unrecognised AEREREZR 2
temporary differences MG e (198) (145)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERKBABRBEEEZ
not recognised MG 1,242 1,148
Under-provision in respect of NEFEZ2BETR
prior years 1,843 -
Under-provision in current year ~ AFE ZBET R - (34) "
Tax effect of preferential income MEBARIEEFMEHE 2 -
tax rate of a subsidiary MG & (3,854) (2,908) B
Others H A, 2 - ﬁ
Actual tax expense ERMES N 30,188 10,495

89
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Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND 8 ESFMREEMSE
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEHMN
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section BREFE (RREH) &
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the 16MER EMRBIBENE
Listing Rules is as follows: EEBMT
2009
ZEEnE
Salaries,
wages Pension
and other scheme Share-hased
Name of director Fees benefits Bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4 1% Bfie
Esft? Be  REMER 4 HE Nt VRS @it
AL ThR TR ThR ThR TR ThR
(noteff)
(W)
Vice-chairman HES:
Mr. Hu Yangxiong (note (i) WEEEE
() - 1,200 100 7 1327 400 1,721
Executive directors #7Es
M. Sha Yingje PERELE - 129 540 14 683 254 97
Mr. Qu Jiagi BEHELE - 192 750 14 956 254 1,210
Mr. Li Haogang FiEEE - 159 625 14 798 254 1,052
Ms. Lu Xiaoling (note (i) BBRAT
(Wthiy) - 236 - 19 255 - 255
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTEE
S Mr. Chan Wai Kiwong, Peter BAREE 9% - - - 9% - 9%
* Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Fwing EREALE 9% - - - 9% - 9%
ag,- Mr. Tsang Kok Wai (nofe (i) EERRE
= (Witt) % - - - % - %
=
S 288 1,916 2,015 88 4307 1,162 5469

[a]
w
E
=
o}
wv
(L)
=
(a]
-
o
I
[
2
w
=
o
o
-
w
>
w
(a]
=
w
(a]
-
o
(L]
<
2
I
(%)
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

Name of director

E2if

Chairman
Mr. Wu Yijian (note (1)

Vice-chairman
Mr. Hu Yangxiong (note ()

Executive directors
Mr. Leung Siu Kuen (note (1)

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Mr. Qu Jiagi

Mr. Li Haogang

Mr. Lai Chik Fan (note (vi)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter
Mr. Xiao Ming (note (i)

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (note (i)

ik

-85
(H)

EES

falnt
(W)

UnES

PhiERE
(Hiztn)
DEMEE
BRELE
iy e
BRERE
(Hrzttn)

Burumgs

BRGLE
(Hrttii)

BEELE

LERRE
(W)

8 EEFMREESME &)
() EESHM (&)
2008
Z2ENE
Salaries,
wages Pension
and other scheme Share-based
Fees benefits Bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
e 1% Ehe
e REMER il SEER it PUDE @it
T TEn T Thr T T TEn
(note(})
(wn)
- 244 - - 244 - 244
- 1777 100 26 1,903 383 2,286
- 687 54 12 753 182 935
- 142 515 5 662 243 905
- 171 718 5 894 243 1137
- 158 567 5 730 243 973
96 - - - 9% - 96
7 - - - 72 - n
96 N N - 9% - 9%
24 - - - 24 - 24
288 3,179 1,954 53 5474 1,294 6,768
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Share-based payments represent the estimated value
of share options granted to the directors under the
Company's share option scheme. The value of these share
options is measured according to the Group's accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in
note 2(q).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are

disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in
the Directors’ Report and note 29.

(i) Mr. Hu Yangxiong resigned on 8 March 2010.

(i)~ Mr. Lu Xiaoling was appointed on 1 February 2009.

(iv)  Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai was appointed on 25 September
2008.

(v)  Mr. Wu Yijian resigned on 28 May 2008.

(vi)  Mr. Leung Siu Kuen resigned on 11 December 2008.

(vii)  Mr. Lai Chik Fan resigned on 9 October 2008.

(viii)  Mr. Xiao Ming resigned on 26 September 2008.

92

8 EEFMEREEMS &)

(a) ESHM (&

o

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

B IR RIB AR A BB A
SR TES 2 BREZ
EGEE ZEBREZE
BRREAEEINHE
2B NRR P2 &K
RAHHE -

ERALEEMME 25
BREEBERERE T ZER
EHME BEREZEHREY
[ME AR ST &1 — B RO 5
204 58 o

ERAHENR T —TF=
EPANCE 2=

BHBE LN -TEAES
A—BREE

BRHELEENRTZENFN
AZT+hBEZE-

R—BEER_TTENFH
A=+ \B#fE-

2REEER-_ZZNF
T A+ —BEE-

FEISEREN-TT N\F+
ANBEHE-

HIBEERZTENFNA
T RHBHE
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 8 EEFMEREEME &)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EBBEHF AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, EREZ&EaHALTtH 28
all (2008: all) are directors and their emoluments are —EENF 2B AE
disclosed in note 8(a). T mMEMeFBEERHE
8(a) ¥ & °
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEAE —EE)NF
FET FET
Salaries, wages and He TENREMETR
other benefits - -
Pension scheme contributions RIRE R B - -
The emoluments of nil (2008: nil) individual with the ERFALHR HE(ZF
highest emoluments are within the following bands: SNFE)ERALTZHE

NFTHNEEE:

2009 2008

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

—EEAF —EENF

SE¥ S a=% 3

HK$ BT BEZAE EEZ A

Nil — 1,000,000 £ - 1,000,000 - -

B
#
#
_
o
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

9 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of HK$343,602,000 (2008: a
loss of HK$422,118,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

10 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$46,351,000 (2008: HK$545,172,000)
and the weighted average number of 1,161,556,000
ordinary shares (2008: 1,016,735,000 ordinary shares)
in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

9 ARTABRREMLZER

AR REGZEAEBEERRE
343,602,000 T2 BE(ZEF
J\EE - E518422,118,000 7T) -
ERARBI M BRERANBIE -

10 BREER

(a) BEREXREIE

BREAREEBREEARQR
fi% 5 & 1 54846,351,00078
7t (=== )\ 4F : 545,172,000
BIC)TE MERE E1T
1,161,556,000/% 3@ A% ( —
TF )\ :1,016,735,0000%
L@ 2 g FEEE
U

Ealylt-Resl &

Number of shares

Issued ordinary shares at
1 January (note 28(c))
Effect of share options exercised
Effect of exercise of warrants
Effect of conversion of
convertible bonds

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at
31 December

94

RHOBE
2009 2008
‘000 ‘000
—BEREF —ETNF
Fr T
ﬁé—ﬂ—azaé’éﬁ
B (H12228(c)) 1,158,241 948,419
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%Z%; - 16,677
THERREEZZE 3,315 1,120
ERABRESF I TE
- 50,519
R+ZA=+—HELBRK
InAEF &
1,161,556 1,016,735




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

10 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted loss per share
The calculation of diluted loss per share is based on
the following data:

(i) Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company (diluted)

Loss attributable to ordinary 3% i I A% R fE 15 &5 18
equity shareholders

After tax effect of
effective interest on
the liability component
of convertible bonds

Effect of fair value gain A MR ESITER D
recognised on the EERANERZEZ
derivative component of -
convertible bonds

AT E R B E D

LRI R A E A,
(BR) (#%)

Profit/(loss) attributable
to ordinary equity
shareholders (diluted)

10 BRER (&)

SRBAKE
SRBEE AL R TS
HE

(b)

(i) ZFRAEBERKEELG
BF(EE) (#E)

ERMEZBBRTE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—TAE  —TINF
F# T
(46,351) (545,172)
86,157 23,844
(9,058) (73,108)
30,748 (594,436)
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

10 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

10 BREE (&)

(b) Diluted loss per share (Continued) (b) SREBEER (£)

(i)

96

Weighted average number of ordinary (i) BERNEFGE (#

shares (diluted)

&)

Number of shares

RO E
2009 2008
‘000 ‘000
—EENE —EENF
TR T &
Weighted average R+_A=+—HBERRK
number of ordinary IntEFH
shares at 31 December 1,161,556 1,016,735
Effect of conversion of EMmABRES T E
convertible bonds (#tit26)
(note 26) = -
Effect of deemed issue BARR R B EET 2
of shares under the BIELAZEREELT
Company'’s share Btz & (K15229)
option scheme for nil
consideration (note 29) - -
Effect of exercise of THERREE2ZE
warrants (note 28(c)(v)) (Ht#228(c)v)) - -
Weighted average number R+ A=+—HE@K
of ordinary shares at e B (#5E)
31 December (diluted) 1,161,556 1,016,735
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

10 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 10 BRER (&)
(b) Diluted loss per share (Continued) (b) SREEERE (&)
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary (i) ZBERINEFGE (#
shares (diluted) (Continued) H) (&)

The exercise of the outstanding share options AR F R Q R B AE
and warrants has no dilutive effect for the year RRBREFEITHEES
ended 31 December 2009 because the exercise R FHTE - W17
price of the Company's share options and B R AR TE 2 B AR i %
warrants were higher than the average market REEFLHHE_ZTZT
price of the shares during the year. NE+ZA=+—81
FEYTEBXNEEY

g o
The convertible bonds have no dilutive effect for AMBREFEHEBEE_Z
the year ended 31 December 2009. ZNF+ZA=+—H
IFFEI R E

% o

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 HitZ2EW S
2009 2008
“ZENE ZZTN\E

Before-tax Tax Net-of tax Before-tax Tax Net-of tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
RHASE RExE  BRE&SE  BRALE RExE  BHKEE
TR TR ThT TAL TAL TRL

Exchange differences on translation BESNNBRRMBERE
of financial statements of overseas EECERZE p”
subsidiaries 149 - 149 4,711 - 4711 B
Loy
Other comprehensive income E2Eba 149 - 149 4711 - 471 5
4

TFESRERARAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

12 FIXED ASSETS

(@) The Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2008
Exchange differences
Revaluation

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

At 31 December 2008

At 1 January 2009
Exchange differences
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

At 31 December 2009
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2008

Exchange differences
Revaluation

Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2008
At 1 January 2009
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
At 31 December 2009

Carrying value:

At 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2008

98

—— S
12 BIEEE
(a) =&
Furniture,
Leasehold  fixtures and Motor Construction
improvements  equipment vehicles Machinery in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BENE  GA-EE
£ R BHIA W ERIE &it
TEL TEL ThL ThL FhL TEn
RA:
R=ZEN\E-F-H 45416 20,128 734 - 2,378 68,656
EREE 2,824 1,230 2% (174) 127 4,033
B 5,649 652 - - - 6,301
WEEH B 59,949 9,082 3,416 8,955 3,522 84,924
RE 13916 1,768 519 - 966 17,169
- 1,078 - - - (1,078) -
e (3,188) (806) (563) - - (4,557)
RZZEN\F+ZA=+-A 125,644 32,054 4132 8,781 5,915 176,526
R-EEAE-F-R 125,644 32,054 4132 8,781 5915 176,526
ERES 80 14 1 125 4 24
RE 10,471 2,971 2,142 8 1,869 17,461
- 3,678 209 - - (3,887) -
e (3,037) (2,163) (165) - - (5,365)
R-ZEAE+-A=+-A 136,836 33,085 6,110 8,914 3,901 188,846
2itHE:
RZZZN\E-F-H 2,392 2,401 7 - - 4,820
ERZE 501 262 3 - - 766
B 4752 1,549 - - - 6,301
TERE 5,750 3,020 252 437 - 9,459
HERER (2,667) (643) (44) - - (3,354)
R-ZZ)\F+-A=+-A 10,728 6,589 238 437 - 17,992
RZZENE-F-R 10,728 6,589 238 437 - 17,992
EHEE 16 7 - 3 - 2
TERE 9,738 3,354 303 2,913 - 16,308
HERER (1,549) (1,559) (13) - - (3,121)
RZBEAE+-A=+-A 18,933 8,391 528 3,353 - 31,205
BEFE:
RZZEAE+=A=+-A 117,903 24,694 5,582 5,561 3,901 157,641
R-ZZN\E+-A=+-H 114,916 25,465 3,804 8,344 5,915 158,534
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Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

12 FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 12 BIEEE (#)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) X&EHE(#&)
The motor vehicles held under finance lease has Nt EHERAENERT
expired during the year. At the reporting date, the BERFEANEm -ERER
net book value of motor vehicles held under finance B AEBELREEERSE
leases of the Group amounted to HK$nil (2008: WERTEREFEAS
HK$217,000). Bt (ZFZ/)\F 217,000
IL) °
(b) The Company (b) &=AQF
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
HK$'000
HM-£E
REHE
FHET
Cost: A E
At 1 January 2008 RZZEENF—H—H 50
Disposals & (50)
At 31 December 2008, 1 January 2009 and RZZZENF
31 December 2009 tTZA=+—8"
—ZEThF-A—BK
—ETAFE+ZRA=+—H -
Accumulated depreciation: ZitiE: .
4
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENF—-—H—H 50 ﬁ
Written back on disposals & R (50) |
1
At 31 December 2008, 1 January 2009 and RZZZENF
31 December 2009 +=A=+—8" %
—EThF-A—BRK e
—TEAF+-_A=1+—H - =
I
Carrying value: BRMEE :
H#
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZEBEAF+=-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2008 R_ZEZENF+-_A=+—H -

99




(=2
(=3
o
~N
-
=
o
o
[
o
©
=1
=
c
<
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

13

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2008
Exchange differences
Elimination upon acquisition of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2008, 1 January 2009 and
31 December 2009

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2008

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

Written back against elimination on consolidation

At 31 December 2008, 1 January 2009 and
31 December 2009

Carrying value:
At 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2008

100

TEE

BAE

R-EZENF—HF—H
ER%%
A U BT B8 1 ) B T 8

R-BBNF
+=A=+-A:
“ETAE-A-ABR
—EEAF A=+ A

Rt

N—EENF—H—H
E 5 Z &

REFE
fRE RO

RZEBEEN\FE
+=—A=+—8"
“EENF-A—BX
TEEAFE+-A=+—H

BRMEE :

R-BEAE+=-A=+—H

R-FZENEFE+=-_A=+—H

Licence
HK$'000
45 ET R
FET

19,145
3,593

(22,738)

3,567

2,648

1,497
(7,712)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 13 BEEE (&)
The intangible assets represent the right to operate BREEEEAEEZENBE LA
department stores in PRC using the brand name “Century RS TEESEAERBELESIER
Ginwa” for a 10-year term commencing 13 April 2005 EEENR_ZETERFMNA+=AH
licensed by Century Ginwa to the Group’s wholly owned REETH) T F B A LA 42 & 7E B k8
subsidiary, Century Ginwa Urumqi. Upon the acquisition of HBRPRLEFTERE - RZE
Century Ginwa by the Group on 31 August 2008 (see also ZENEFENA=T—BAEEKE
note 27), Century Ginwa became a subsidiary of the Group. St (ZHaz27) FEXA
The above licensing transaction and balance have been REEWB AR Bt itz kg
eliminated upon consolidation. BRZGRBRERERE L -
14 SUBSIDIARIES 14 HWERF
The Company
¥ NN
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF —EENF
FTERT FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost ARG -
BKAE 2 2
Less: Provision for impairment loss BB EEERE (1) (1)
1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BT B8~ B R E 1,175,415 1,213,692
Less: Provision for impairment loss OB EEERE (711,499) (476,999)
463,916 736,693
W
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 1~ B /BB A B 5k I8 7,605 7,656 "
2
4
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, FEN, (FE) B A R E R & |
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. KR 2B RRBEEERBR-

T
S
B
e
s
ol
i3
i
&
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 BT (&)
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: BEBARIERIT:

Particulars of

Place of issued and fully
establishment paid share capital/ Ownership interest
Name and operation registered capital Direct Indirect  Nature of business
BETR
BRRE/ BERER
L RUREXLE aMERER E# B FE#E
Bright Chance (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% - Provision of administrative
2E(TM)ERAF 5% 1,000/ 7T services
RETHRS

China King Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding
HEERERAT ) TR RERK
China Rich International Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding

Management Limited B BT REBRK
HERRERERAR
ARtEeEENERAR People’s Republic of HK$65,000,000 - 100%  Operation of department
(Xian Century Ginwa Property China 65,000,0007% 7T stores

Investments Company Limited)* HEARKMNE BEBENA
Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping Mall Hong Kong HK$10 - 100%  Investment holding

(H.K.) Limited BE 1087 REER
tREESEAERDTL

(BE)ERAR
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 WEQE (#)
Particulars of
Place of issued and fully
establishment paid share capital/ Ownership interest
Name and operation registered capital Direct Indirect  Nature of business
BERATR
BERE/ BEREES
a8 RUREEHE aMEXER EE B XBME
R EERABENPLERAF People’s Republic of RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Operation of department
(Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping Mall China AR #50,000,00070 stores
Company Limited)* REARLKMNE KEBERA
S ERHBERAE People’s Republic of RMB235,500,000 - 76.43%  Operation of department
(Century Ginwa Joint Stock China AR #235,500,0007C stores
Company Limited)* HEARKANE BERERA
ARt e ENEERERAR People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 - 76.43%  Property management
(Xian Century Ginwa Property China AE 1,000,000 nNEER
Management Company Limited)* hEARLAE
* The English translation of the company names is for reference * RERXFEEERRZE « ZER
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese. A B IE 25 T B o
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15 GOODWILL 15 B8
The Group
AEH
HK$'000
FHETT
Cost: RAE :
At 1 January 2008 RZZEENF—H—H 4,513
Additions (note 27) RNE (K1it27) 831,232
Disposal & (2,802)
At 31 December 2008, 1 January 2009 and RZZZT)N\F
31 December 2009 +-—A=+—8"
—EENF-A—HK
—EENF+ZA=T—H 832,943
Accumulated impairment: HETRE:
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENF—-—H—H 4,513
Provision for impairment loss B R 1R B 604,653
Written back on disposal & B B (O] (2,802)
At 31 December 2008, 1 January 2009 and RZEENF
31 December 2009 +—A=+—8H"
—ETENF-A—HK
—EEAF+-_A=1+—H 606,364
Carrying value: BRE{E
g At 31 December 2009 R-ZBZEAE+=-A=+—H 226,579
E At 31 December 2008 RZFFNFFT_A=1+—H 226,579
&

[a]
w
E
=
o}
wv
(L)
=
(a]
-
o
I
[
2
w
=
o
o
-
w
>
w
(a]
=
w
(a]
-
o
(L]
<
2
I
(%)
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15 GOODWILL (Continued) 15 & (&)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU") identified according to business segment as
follows:

BEREREELBNZRER
=S
BEIREAKREZRAECELE
G WIRIBA TNEB OO

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEEAF —ET)N\F
TR FET
Operation of department stores RPBEEEEEAR
in the PRC 226,579 226,579

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. Goodwill is expected
to generate cash flow for an indefinite period. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering approximately
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond that five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below.
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

ReEEEL AT YL E 5Ty A
EREEAE ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ETx
RAOBRHELERERE Bt &
ﬁ%éﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂi%%ﬂ
BEFRBAZRSRE - BARF
gﬁzfﬁ.iuwgfﬁﬁﬁ J//(TEJ u”jZ1E
LR MERETESRNE
CEABUREZEBZREF
HERE-

AEEREEZIERR:

2009 2008
% %

—genE —TENE |

% % |

i

— Gross margin —EFE 19 19 ﬁ
— Growth rate — R K 2 2
- Discount rate — IR E 14.8 14.8

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
and growth rate based on past performance and its
expectations for market development. The discount rate
used is post-tax and reflects specific risks relating to this
segment.

EEEREBERARHEMSH
REAAEBEETREENXRER
S ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁT&ﬁHZ%?ﬂ“‘“’Jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé&
f B B8 1t 53 BB A B 2 5 E LR o
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(a) The carrying amounts of loan receivables are analysed

as follows:

Interest free portion
Interest-bearing portion

at 2%-7.839%

(2008: 2%-7.839%)

106

% BERIBHG
TR ERBMD2%E
7.839%
—ETN\EF:
2%%7.839% )

16 LOAN RECEIVABLES 16 BWER
The Group
rEE

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EERE —EENEF

F&T FAET

At 1 January n—A—H 1,364,623 36,153

Exchange differences PE W =% 818 (7,738)
Add: Acquisition of subsidiaries hn: BB E A A

(note 27) (Krat27) - 1,333,018

Add: Additions hn: #E A0 49,330 43,728

Less: Settlement during the year W FANEE (12,000) (40,538)

At 31 December WR+—A=+—H 1,402,771 1,364,623
Less: Current portion classified B B AR [

as current assets B &REEE (8,982) (20,979)

Non-current portion JEMENEB D 1,393,789 1,343,644

() EUERFEEEINET:

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E22NE —TTN\F
TERT TAET
510,566 460,956
892,205 903,667
1,402,771 1,364,623
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16 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis (b) ZEAB DA
The loans are receivable as below: EUWERMT
Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within —F1&E
5 years RAFNK

(c)(i) Loans to Ming Fai

On 25 September 2006, Ming Fai Princess
Entertainment Limited (“Ming Fai”), Bright Chance
(Asia) Limited (“Bright Chance”), Mr. Cai Jun Jie and
Anglo View Limited (“Anglo View") entered into a
loan assignment agreement. Pursuant to the loan
assignment agreement, Ming Fai agreed to assign all
its rights and benefits in a loan receivable balance of
HK$30,000,000 from Anglo View to Bright Chance
at a consideration of HK$30,000,000. The loan
receivable is repayable semi-annually in the amount
of HK$5,100,000, comprising the principal amount of
HK$5,000,000 and interest amount of HK$100,000,
for the six half years ended 31 December 2009.

The outstanding loan balance of HK$5,000,000 has
been fully received in cash in January 2010.

16 BWERR (&)

The Group
rEE

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
—EEAF —EENF
FHET THET
8,982 20,979
1,393,789 1,343,644
1,402,771 1,364,623

(i) FTHEZER
RZEERFLAZ-TH
H PRiEHip & & R
BERRA ([HE]) =2
E(EMBRRA([£
) - BN % £ RAnglo
View Limited ([Anglo
View ] )iV ERE Z W
ot BEREAnglo
Viewss % H 10 E I E K &4
%830,000,0008 T2 FT B
B EMZTEE REAR
30,000,000/ Jr ° FE W & X
BREBE-_ZTNEFE+_-A
=t+—HUEANEEFESF
F(8i85,100,000/8 T (B
7K 45,000,000 JT & F &
100,000/ 7T ) °

F{EE B 585,000,000

BRER-F—FE— AL
ReEHRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

16 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(c)(ii) Loans to Ginwa Investments

In September 2008, the Group’s subsidiary, Century
Ginwa, entered into an unsecured loan agreement
with Ginwa Investments Company Limited (“Ginwa
Investments”) for its advances of RMB1,165,348,000
to be repayable by 31 August 2013. The interest
bearing loan portion carries interest at the five-
year lending rate published by the People’s Bank of
China, the PRC (see note 34(c)) and is repayable by
31 August 2013. Mr. Wu Yijian, a former executive
director and chairman of the Company, and currently
a director of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries, has
a 60% equity interest in Ginwa Investments, thus,
Ginwa Investments is a connected party to the Group.

(c)(iii)Other loan receivables

(d)

108

The Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, Xian Century
Ginwa, signed loan agreements with independent
third parties, for unsecured loans of RMB3,500,000,
which bear interest at 7.839% per annum (2008:
6.03% to 7.839%) and are repayable by 25 March
2009. The loan period was extended to 30 June 2010.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
loan receivables approximate their fair values.

16 BWER (&)
i) TERREZERK

RZEZNFEFNLA K&
B BARELSERS
EREBR AR ([&TE
BE])EK— R E KA
EXmE EERXRARE
1,165,348,0007T * W —F
— = \R=t+—HR&-
ZEFGEMOETEAAR
RITPA DM 2 AFEER
KB (HfaE34(c)) » WRR
—E-=ZF/\A=t—H#
BE-ARAAMATEER
ERARAEEETHEA
AREERER —BAELERAE
TR E60%E = A UL
SRERER/AEB ZBEA
+o

(<) (i) £ 1t & Wy & X

(d)

AEEB2EWNBRAFAL
HtRLESTEEHBYE=ZFF
FERW#H NEEBER
AR #3,500,0007T @ M £
£7.839% (ZZTZT )\ F:
6.03%%7.839% ) WK =
EETNF=ZA_+HBE
B-BERHERE_ZT T
FXA=+H-
EERARKENREEEH
HAREHEE-
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17 INVENTORIES 17 78
Inventories in the statement of financial position comprise: MBRAXRPHFERE:
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEhF —EENF
FHET FETT
Raw materials R+ 919 836
Low value consumables RES R 2,145 2,071
Merchandise BLE 24,229 29,465
27,293 32,372
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 FEUWER R H fib FE WL K
The Group The Company
big- ] ¥ N
2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
“BENE ZTT/\F ZBEAE C—TI)\F
TEx TET TER TET

Trade receivables e U BR 7R 11,748 8,501 = -
Less: Allowance for impairment loss B OREBEER
(note (b)) (Hztb) (3,244) (3,118) = -
8,504 5,383 - - -
Deposits and prepayments Re RBAR 13,654 7,497 384 543 ﬁ
Other receivables H R 7,103 10,336 - - 2
Value-added tax recoverable (note (d)) ] U o] SE (B Ff :
(K () 42,590 37,000 - - 1
71,851 60,216 384 543 E
m
v
All of the trade and other receivables, apart from rental and P FE MR BRI EL A e Wk (TE 7% :
utility deposits of HK$119,030 (2008: HK$154,663), are R AREFEZ£119,0308 T (= b
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within TF)\F 154,663 7T) R HN)
one year. AR —FRknRERAY |
ﬁ o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

110

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of allowance for impairment loss) with
the following ageing analysis as of the reporting date:

0-30 days 0-30K
31-60 days 31-60K
61-90 days 61-90X
Over 90 days 90K I

Impairment of trade receivables
The movement in the allowance for impairment loss
during the year is as follows:

At 1 January mn—H—H
Acquisition of subsidiaries W RSB E A 7
Provision for the year NEFRE
Exchange differences MEH ZRE

At 31 December W+=—A=+—8

(%)
(a) HR#ER D #T

18 JE WU iR 7k K HL At & W =K

AN U R R e L A B WK
Z FEYR R (2 MR REE
BHE) N RE A2 REK

DMWT
The Group
£33

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBEAF —EENF
FTHET THET
7,038 4,073
402 175
745 107
319 1,028
8,504 5,383

(b) EWERM ZREE
FRREERZHRESD

T~
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBEAF —ZEENF
THET THET
3,118 -
- 3,137
131 -
(5 (19)
3,244 3,118
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

()

(d)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly on a
cash basis, by cash, debit card or credit card payment.
The Group does not have a defined fixed credit policy
as its major trade receivables arise from debit and
credit card sales.

Based on past experience, the directors believe that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these trade receivables arising from credit card sales
because there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Value-added tax recoverable

Included in the value-added tax recoverable is an
amount of HK$14,938,000 which the Group has
prepaid, as requested by the local PRC Tax Bureau,
in respect of customer’s gift cards sold in 2007 and
2008. The Group has been negotiating with the PRC
Tax Bureau as to when the prepaid VAT can be used to
offset or settle the output VAT derived from the sale
of goods in future.

18 JE WU iR 7k K HL At & W =K

(%)

()

(d)

$RLE 2 FE W AR X

AEEEBEEENTEHE
RIRe /T BIARE - Mk
REERRAR - ANEEL
E-ERTEBEEEEER:
REFERUEFEHNERER
MERMRIHEEL-

REEEER EFHEE
FRERRHEEENRER
RPERERE REEE
=B ANE N EE &R
RRFER 2 EE -

A U [ 38 (B B

W EEE R R
14,938,000/8 0 B & 58
DAEEEEWRRBER
ERPR_ZEZL+ER T
SNFZEFERFELE
e REE—HBh A B A F
FBIE G ER ISR
RIHEEMELE 2 HEEE
R R REITE
ﬁo
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

19 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED 19 B (ER)BREATARK
COMPANIES b1 |
Details of amounts due from related companies are as EHEWEE QR FRIENFIE®N
follows: Ik
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during
2009 the year 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FARS
—EENE REEBEE _—_TZENF
FET FAT FET

PRt 2 S ESFE YO
BRAR ("IESHF")
(Shaanxi Century Ginwa
Hi-Tech Shopping Centre
Company Limited)*

5,030 -

177 -

("Ginwa Hi-Tech”) 73
ALt EES
BY AR AT
(Xian Century Ginwa Saigo
Shopping Company Limited)* 177
250

* The English translation of the company names is for reference
only. The official names of these company are in Chinese.

112
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19

20

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED
COMPANIES (continued)

The amounts due from/(to) related companies are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) DIRECTORS
Details disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance in relation to amount due from
a director are as follows:

Mr. Li Haogang TR SEAE

The amount due from a director was unsecured, interest
free and had no fixed terms of repayment. The amount was
settled during the year.

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free
and has no fixed terms of repayment.

19

20

FEW, (FEH) BERAAR
8 ()

Y (B BIERRIRIARE
Tﬁﬁ‘%/%\&ﬁlif&ﬁﬁﬁ

W (FEfY) EERIE
BHEKESEFEEREE
B EDIE161BERBMT :

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during
2009 the year 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRARS
—EENF KEEBEE —TTNF
THET THET THET
- 78 78

ENESFHASEIEM %5 RE
BEERH FRATHRENFAX
fif e

ENESHAE/BIEM 2 RE
[E] 7E & SR ER o
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 ReRBEEEEEB

The Group The Company
N | ¥ N

2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EEAE —TTN\GF ZEBEEAE CZITTN\E
TERT TET TET FET
Time deposits TEHIER = 5,685 = -
Cash at bank and in hand BITEGERFERS 88,505 84,686 44 8
88,505 90,371 44 8

W REHBAER=MEA

Less: Time deposits with original maturity

over three months A E 2 REER - (5,685)
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated %GARERERZE S
statement of cash flows KBREEEER 88,505 84,686
(a) Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on (a) RITHEFREBEFSHEFETER
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(b)

114

daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for a period of three months and earn interest
at 1.71% (2008: 3.15%) per annum. The directors
consider the carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents approximate their fair values.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, subject to relevant rules and
regulation of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

(b)

FI R 1Z)Z B BELF B - 52 5
THERERBEAE=EA "
BEE1.71% (T N\ F:
3.15% ) FE-BEERARE
MR EEHEANERRDER
HEAREHEE-

ARBITEdRLBRAEMD
S AT - BRI B BUTR
1o r B B SINE B HIAR B ROK
B RNEER BB AEETT
SNEREHIRITIEARE L
BREMER-
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ERRAREMENRK
The Group The Company
xEH N

2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“ZERE ZTE)\§& ZEERE ZTIT)N\H
TR FHET Tz FET
Trade payables JE& R 3X 21,687 25,306 - -
Advances and deposits from staff ETREMNEER 5,313 6,107 = -
Concessionaire sales payable ERETEEHEER 238,694 209,234 = -
Customers’ deposits and gift cards RPEeREBMF 360,486 464,734 = -
Dividend payable R B 5,188 64,372 = -
Other payables and accruals HittER G RETER 267,123 55,744 4,248 1,905
Other tax payables Hith 58 1,594 1,571 - -
Payroll and welfare payables [ERE e REH 18,628 21,788 - -
Renovation retention EEEE2 1,623 2,187 = -
Suppliers’ deposits "EFIT2 3,019 2,512 = -
901,668 828,249 4,248 1,905
923,355 853,555 4,248 1,905
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be FT 75 & 1~ BR 30 Ko B At 8 A5 3R 1R
settled or recognised as an income within one year. The —FAREEHERBBA - EEFR
directors consider the carrying amounts of trade and other 7% FE AN BR 3R % HL B NP 3R 2 BRTE

payables approximate their fair values. EEEQXRERE-

Ageing analysis fR#R 2 A7
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables 5T E A BR SR R B At SRR 2 B
with the following ageing analysis as of the reporting date: RERRR WS B H 2 BRiE 2 47 a0
T
The Group

rEEH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$"000
0 —EENEF
THERT FET
0-30 days 0-30% 16,103 19,291
31-90 days 31-90°K 4,169 4,803
Over 90 days 90K LA E 1,415 1,212
21,687 25,306
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

23 BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Bank loans, secured (note (a)) BEB|ZIRITER
(Htit(a))

Other loan payable (note (b)) H th & < & 5K
(H1iEm))

(a) Bank loans, secured
The bank loans are interest bearing at a range from
5.31% to 7.254% per annum (2008: 5.31% to 13%),
secured by investment securities and properties of
related companies and guarantees given by related
companies, and are repayable within one year.

(b) Other loan payable
The other loan is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand (see note 35(b)).

116

23 RITREMER

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENFE —EENF
TERT FET
186,431 358,575
80,910 -
267,341 358,575
(a) BERZBITER

(b)

ERARTEZZNT531%
F£7.254% (Z T T )\ F:
531%Z13% ) 2 &F F| 5t
B UBEQARZREFS
NEANRBERNRZERZ
EREER TER—FR

Big-

Hib B E K
HitERAERT 28K
ARBRBEE (BT
35(b)) °
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24 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 24 MEHEZEH
At 31 December 2009, the Group had obligations under RZZEZNF+_RA=+—8"
finance leases repayable as follows: AEEREREMERABECZE

BT
2009 2008
“EZhE —TTN\E

Present Present
value of Total value of Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments payments

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REAE SEHEE SEHEE SEHE
ARZBE  ARRE [F2RE  ORAE
TER TEL TAT TAT

Within 1 year —5R - - 154 178
After 1 year but within 5 years —ERERER - - - -
- - 154 178
Less: Total future interest expenses B ARFISERES - (24)
Present value of lease obligations HEGKEE - 154
The finance leases were fully repaid during the year. MEHEDCRFATHEER-

B
#
#
_
o
o
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 ZREMBRRKRZAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HZAMBMRREK 2 AT
financial position represents: =K
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$°000
—EENE —EENEF
FTERT FHET
Provision for PRC Enterprise REFHBEDE
Income Tax for the year PG
(note 7(a)) (Krit7(a)) 27,963 10,231
Exchange differences MW ZE 46 54
Provisional tax paid Bz FEE T A (11,989) (6,988)
16,020 3,297
Balance of tax provision BEFERIEREER
relating to prior years 26,030 26,857
Under-provision in respect of BEFEREDE
prior years 1,937 -
Tax refund for prior years BEFERB 928 -
Tax paid for prior years BEFEEHMNBIE (5.225) (4,124)
Tax provision taken up by FEE RN T FTET IR B
a related company (32,401) -
Current taxation ZINEEF ] 7,289 26,030
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 ZREMBRRKRZAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#&)
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EERELHBEBEEN A
f&:
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in RERE TR R RER ZE
the consolidated statement of financial position and FERL IR E BEE R 1D R AN F B
the movements during the year are as follows: BT
The Group REH
Decelerated Provision
depreciation Loss on Deferred for
allowances  investment income  impairment Others Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W
EERE REBX EZRA AERE Ht At

TiEn TR TiERL TEL TEL TEL

Deferred tax arising from: BERBVAR:

At 1 January 2008 RZZZN\E—-F—-H - - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries KRB AR (Hz27)

(note 27) (5,546) (213) 1,930 (782) 669 (3,942)
Charge to profit or loss (note 7la)  BEXHE (H#7a) (251) - 190 - 325 264
Exchange differences EXEE 33 2 (12) 4 @) 3
At 31 December 2008 RZZEN\F+ZA=+-A (5.764) 21 2,108 (778) 990 (3,655)
At 1 January 2009 RZZEhE-F-H (5,764) 21 2,108 (778) 990 (3,655)
Charge to profit or loss (note 7a)  B&Z M (H#7) (246) - 567 (33) - 288
Exchange differences EXEE 4) - 3 - - )
At 31 December 2009 W-EBhE+-A=1-H (6,014) 211) 2,678 (811) 990 (3,368)
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#
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o
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 ZREMBRRKRZAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#&)
(Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EENEF
FTERT FHET
Net deferred tax assets RERE B I AR 2R 3R
recognised on the R IE & R R
consolidated statement
of financial position 3,368 3,655
(c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not () RERZELEHNEEER
recognised afE
In accordance with the accounting policy set BB M 20T 8 2 & 5T X
out in note 2(r) the Group has not recognised KAEEREZRFABEEE
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax AR ELERIBEELD
losses of approximately HK$15,186,000 (2008: 715,186,000 L (= ZFF
HK$10,025,000) as it is not probable that future JU4 10,025,000 1) * R
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised EREBBMGErIEER R
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and BB T ] BEERAT AR 2R FE AR
entity. 7t g M) LA it S 4R HE 8 o
g The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the RERREE RN A TF
g following years ending 31 December: Ez+tZA=+—BEm:
g The Group
< KEE
o 2009 2008
5 HK$"000 HK$'000
3 —BEAE —ETNE
E TET FHET
2
E 2013 —E—=F - 150
= 2014 —E—FE 925 -
g No expiry date ®E % B 14,261 9,875
= 15,186 10,025
s
5
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25

26

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not

recognised (Continued)

At 31 December 2009, the Group has unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$8,495,000
(2008: HK$5,450,000) in relation to withholding
tax on undistributed earnings of approximately
HK$169,903,000 (2008: HK$109,000,000) due to the
retention of undistributed earnings by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC determined by the directors of
the Company.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 19 September 2008, the Company issued 2.75%
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$1,231,612,000. The five-year convertible
bonds were issued with a conversion price of HK$0.689 per
share and will mature on 18 September 2013. The yield to
maturity is 19.12%.

Due to several terms in the convertible bonds including
price reset and cash settlement option, the conversion
will not result in the exchange of a fixed number of the
Company's shares. In accordance with the requirements
of HKAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation and HKAS
39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
the convertible bond contract must be separated into two
component elements: a derivative component consisting
of the conversion option and a liability component of the
straight debt element of the convertible bonds.

On the issue of the convertible bonds, the fair value of
the embedded conversion option was calculated using
the Trinomial Tree model. The derivative component, the
embedded conversion option, is carried at fair value on
the statement of financial position with any changes in fair
value being charged or credited to the income statement in
the period when the change occurs. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the debt element of the convertible
bonds, net of transaction costs, and is recorded as the
liability component. The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. Interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method by applying the effective interest
rate to the liability component through the maturity date.

25 GEMBRRARZHAEHR

(%)

() RERZEEREEER
BE(E)
RZEENF+ZA=+—
B AEFEHETNDIREFZ
FE X 47169,903,0007% 7T

—ZZ )\ 4 109,000,000
BIL) B Z RERIEER
T8 8 & A& #18,495,000/%8 7T
(=—Z 2= )\ 4 :5,450,000/%
JC) ' REARARRERRTE
RASEZHEKERQRIR
BARDIREFFTE -

26 ATEARES

RZZEZENFNATILE  ARQF
LA 48 7K 4 58 491,231,612,200/8 7T
EE172.75% Al R AR IE S - I FHT]
MR EHFNGRERE0.689E T
BT YR ZE—=FnA+/\H
B HR o B HE R B 519.12%

BRI RRES RO KB
ETEREASEEERE A
BEFTAERERMENAR
Ay - RIEE B G ERFE32
HIeMT R IR REBG
HERFE395 (SR T A - R K&t
BIWRE TRBRESFEHBA
DEMENEE : B EihEs
TR - RATR R EFERER
MBREED -

EETA MR ERR - NS A ER
RO RABEA=TTE AT E - H
OTAERMD - RE R EIRE - PN
AEINRMBHORE - MR RE
BEMAZEE MEZSHBRFEN
Z R ERIE S SR AR
HRIHERERIEARRES
MEED (MR HHA) A
CERRBERSND BEROERRER
BT BEERBBLED
B A R 3 © 1SS (8 A B R NS
TERE  UEERFNXZB B

HaEED-
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26

122

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

If the convertible bonds are converted, the carrying
amounts of the derivative and liability components
are transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the convertible
bonds are redeemed, any difference between the amount
paid related to the liability component and the carrying
amount of liability component is recognised in the income
statement.

The embedded conversion option has been separated from
the host debt contract and accounted for as a derivative
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
value of this conversion option which is not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select an appropriate
valuation method and makes assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each reporting
date. The valuation model requires the input of subjective
assumptions, such as the volatility of the share price, stock
closing price, dividend vyield, risk-free rate, and expected
option life. Changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate. For the year
ended 31 December 2009, the fair value of the derivative
component of the convertible bonds was calculated using
the Trinomial Tree Model.

Fair value of the conversion option

The change in the fair value of the conversion option
during the year resulted in a fair value gain of
approximately HK$9,058,000, which has been recorded as
“Fair value gain on the derivative component of convertible
bonds” in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

26 ARRES (#)

ERBmRkEFRER TERAE
BOOREESSE RBRA RN
(8 WIERBEITROHOKE-F
AgEkEFRERD  XNEHAE
%ﬁ#$&91ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RGN E R ARER

NErAEngED BEAEEHKA
WD FRIE  WIEREAEER
SHRBEEZITEBEBEAR-EF
NAER BT 5 50 A @ik
ZRRERAGEIEREE -
$EEE%EM%X Il —EA
BIAETDERELRR - EFRR
RESERSBHAOHSERR -
ZEETABREBRBR Bk
MERERE R KHE BE
R ERARL RN IBRHESE -
ITEERXNEHEERTELR
EN{HE- RBEE-_TTNAF+ =
A=1t—HLFE m#kEHT
EBMZARERRB=THA
EEH -

AEREZAARE
EBRENARBEEFAZE
&) 2R EHIN499,058,0007%8
T YEREBEEZZTEENAFT=A
=+ BLEFEZERARZEREA
BRA[MRESTESBOZ AR
EREd
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26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 26 ATRES ()
The carrying values of the derivative component and R_ZEZENF+T_A=+—HT7
liability component of the convertible bonds as at 31 BMRESF 2 ITEE N KA &N
December 2009 are as follows: ZHAREBEMT

The Group and the Company

AEBRALQT
Liability = Derivative
component component Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=R R PTE 7 aFt
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2008 N_ZEZN\F—-H—H - - -
Issue of convertible BT BMRES
bonds (note 27) (Htit27) 688,534 149,736 838,270
Fair value gain on AMBREFITESD 2
the derivative component A EWE
of convertible bonds - (73,108) (73,108)
Interest expense (note 6(a)) FMEZH (Hit6@)) 28,556 - 28,556
Conversion during the year F Qe R (71,317) (15,488) (86,805)
At 31 December 2008 RZEZENF
+-—A=+—8H 645,773 61,140 706,913
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—-—HA—A 645,773 61,140 706,913
Fair value gain on the AR E H T E B D
derivative component Z AR ERE
of convertible bonds - (9,058) (9,058)
Interest expense (note 6(a)) B (Hit6a)) 103,182 - 103,182
Interest paid B F A (33,610) - (33,610) ﬁ
B
At 31 December 2009 R-BBhE i
+=ZA=+—H 715,345 52,082 767,427 L
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26

27

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

On 22 September 2008, the convertible bond in a
principal amount of HK$127,396,100 was converted into
184,900,000 ordinary shares.

As a result of the conversion, the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible bonds was HK$1,104,216,100 as
at 31 December 2008 and 2009.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition of Century Ginwa group

On 25 September 2007, the Group entered into
agreements with Ginwa Investments and its associates to
acquire a 76.43% equity interest in Century Ginwa and
Xian Century Ginwa Property Management Company
Limited (“Century Ginwa group”) at an aggregate
consideration of RMB180,000,000 in cash and of
HK$1,231,612,200 in convertible bonds issued by the
Company. The acquisition was completed on 31 August
2008, at which date the fair value of convertible bonds and
the cash consideration amounted to HK$1,044,168,000.
The fair value of the convertible bonds was determined
based on the valuations carried by an independent firm of
surveyors, RHL Appraisal Ltd., using Trinomial Tree Model as
at that date.

124
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27

AR ES (&)

RZZBEZNFNLAZ+=ZH X%
%8127,396,100/8 T 2 Al #A A% & &
B 5184,900,0000% & 3@ AR o

ATME R R - AR
HFN_FTENFR-_FTNF
TZA=ZT—RZASHRER
1,104,216,10078 7T ©

XBaof
U Bt A2 T R

RZEBEZELFNLA-+HH K
EEESTEREREHRE QA
ER—EHz NBREARK
180,000,000 T 18 & M AN A &) 3
17#91,231,612,20078 JT Al #2 g (&
5o BAMLEIERALHLSIE
MEEEARAR ([HLEEIEE
B ) H76.43% M - 2B W ER
—EENFNA=ZF+—HEK"
MKEEXEBNATREBESD
AERIFEERER1,044,168,000
B AIMREFANBEISERE
Y EERRKAITEREB AR
RAIA=Z Tl AT E M
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27 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Acquisition of Century Ginwa group (Continued)
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill

arising, are as follows:

Net assets acquired:
Fixed assets
Loan receivable
Deferred tax assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from related

companies

Amount due from a director
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Bank loans, secured
Dividend payable
Obligations under finance leases
Current taxation

Less: Dividends declared to
former shareholders
Minority interests

Net assets acquired
Goodwill (note 15)

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash
Issue of convertible bonds
(note 26)

Net cash outflow arising on
acquisition
Cash consideration paid
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

18 > AR
Bl E

P Ui 55 3
BIERIEA B

7E

P M R 30 T B M 3
e Uk B A =) S

W E =508

Ao kREFERHA
JEASS B K e L At B A< 3R
& [R) X 8 2 B kIR
BHEMZRITER
FERT BB
MEHEZE®

R EAT IR

B+ 1) Al AR R B R 2 B S

‘e (Hit15)
BRE
WAFR:
Re

T A AR E A
(##£26)

WEEEZHRESRLIFRE

ENHREHE
ERzRE R
ReFERR

27

EBE0t &)

WREttLSEESE (#)
RHPMERZEEFBNTE
EZEENT:

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before Fair
combination value
HK$'000 HK$'000
W2 R
e A
2HEE AR
THTT AT
104,443 84,924
1,333,018 1,333,018
3,942 3,942
18,684 18,684
29,603 29,597
16,713 16,713
108 108
82,650 82,650
(732,158) (730,644)
(71,308) (71,308)
(401,164) (401,164)
(13,585) (13,585)
(238) (238)
(22,911) (22,911)
347,797 329,786
(51,183)
(65,667)
212,936
831,232
1,044,168
205,898
838,270
1,044,168
(205,898)
82,650
(123,248)
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27 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Acquisition of Century Ginwa group (Continued)
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Century Ginwa
group was attributable to the anticipated future operating

126

synergies from the combination. B E e
28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 EX-RERKRE
(a) The Company (€) I YN
Share-based
Share Share  Contributed payment Warrant  Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
HRH
Note S RiEE AR THEE  IRERRE S| Eh
i3 Tin Tin Fi#n T Fi#n Tn TR
At 1 January 2008 RZFENE-F-A 94,842 307,872 49,886 2,032 2,85 (114,339) 342,578
Shares issued for conversion of RERTARESE T, 2800
convertible bonds ki3 18,490 68,313 - - - - 86,803
Shares issued for exercise of warrants AARETROE 28(6)6i)
E35p4 ) 2292 9,880 - (1,869) - - 10,303
Shares issued for exercise of FERERAE 28(c/li)
share options ESovd 4} 200 70 - - (50) - 920
Equity settled share-based transactions MR X A ZRER S
- Amount recognised during the year -ERERLEE - - - 2,447 - - 2,447
- Forfeture of share options ~ Rk e - - - (163) - 163 -
Expenses paid for placement of shares RERGZERTH - (162) - - - - (162)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (422,118) (422,118)
- At 31 December 2008 RZEENE
§ TZA=t-H 115,84 386,673 49,886 2,447 2,35 (536,294) 20,771
B
g At 1 January 2009 RZFENE-F-A 115,84 386,673 49,886 2,447 2,235 (536,294) 20,771
El Lapse of warrants DRERLH 2800)() - - - - (2.235) 223 -
= Issue of warrants BARER 28(c)y) - - - - 2,548 - 2,548
= Shares issued for exercise of warrants AARETROE 28(0ln)
= 2R 1,000 2010 - - (1) - 2900
= Equity settled share-based transactions MR 2RE% 5
% - Amount recognised during the year -ERERZEE - - - 2,553 - - 2,553
8 - Forfeiture of share options - R - - - (3m2) - 3N -
E Expenses paid for issue of warrants and &7 IER ki1 AR
é [apse of warrants SHMZBATH - (105) - - - - (105)
E Total comprehensive loss for the year TEERABEAE - - - - - (343,602) (343,602)
=
s At 31 December 2009 e Y
E TZB=t-R 116,824 388,578 49,886 4,628 2,438 (877,289) (314,935)
w
2)
=
g
8
s
S
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Dividends
The Board has resolved not to declare any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008:

(c)

HK$NIl).

Share capital

Authorised and issued share capital

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

At 1 January and 31 December

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

At 1 January

Shares issued for conversion of
convertible bonds (note (j))

Shares issued for exercise of
share options (note (ii))

Shares issued for exercise of warrants
(notes (ifi) and (vi)

At 31 December

ETE
FRONBTZERK

R—A—-BRK
+ZA=1+—8

Rk ERTRER:

®—A—H
W] AR (B 5
BTG (H1323))
IFEERERETRG
(Hiii))
TERREERET
B (B3R w))

R+-—RA=+—H

28 EXR -FHERKRE (&)

(b) BRE
BEEgRATHREE_ZEE
NF+A=+—HLEHF
EEREMEBRE(ZEZN
F BT °

() B=X
FEEREZRTRA

2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF

No. of No. of

shares shares
000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000

RO &2 BHOEE
o FER o FER
20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000
1,158,241 115,824 948,419 94,842
- - 184,900 18,490
- - 22,922 2,292
10,000 1,000 2,000 200
1,168,241 116,824 1,158,241 115,824
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

128

(c) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

(i)

(i)

On 22 September 2008, the convertible bond
in a principal amount of HK$127,396,100 was
converted into 184,900,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each at the conversion price of
HK$0.689. The excess of the conversion price
over the par value of the new shares, totalling
HK$68,313,000, was credited to the share
premium account of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2008,
22,922,250 new shares of HK$0.1 each were
allotted and issued at a premium of HK$0.35
per share upon the exercise of 22,922,250
share options granted under the share option
scheme as mentioned in note 29 to the financial
statements. The excess of the issue price
over the par value of the new shares and the
related share-based payment reserve, totalling
HK$9,880,000, were credited to the share
premium account of the Company.

28 EX -REERRE (&)

(c)

R (&

ZEERCRITRA ()

BB IRE A A A W
ERZBE RARBKRE
B—IBR—Bz2HTARE-Ff

A

BERBLAR R ZRIHE

ESASRMER-

(i)

(i)

T N\F

)

S
—+ I

|1
m

v

Ky =
2 o

=~

127,396,100/ T 2
AR E 5 A B (E
0.689B T A
184,900,0000% & §%0.1
Bz LBk -EIRE
BEFROEABBS
%168,313,000& 7T
ABRRARQ R Z &0
BiR-

REE-_ZZENF+=
B=+—BL&E-
B B 75 3R % BT 5E29 A
itz B RR R T &I
222,922,25017 B IR
BETE REREE
0358 LBl REEITT
22,922,250R% R EE
0. 1B ZH R - 3
TEBHFROEER
B8 2 LARR D S R
Z 48 % %89,880,000/8
T BEABRREARRZ
B 1D & B ER o
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2008,
an aggregate of 2,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued for cash pursuant to
the exercise of 2,000,000 warrants for a cash
consideration of HK$920,000. The excess by
the subscription price over the par value of
the shares and the related warrant reserve,
totalling HK$770,000, were credited to the share
premium account of the Company.

On 20 July 2009, the 89,398,156 warrants
issued on 20 July 2007 expired.

On 31 August 2009, 231,600,000 warrants at
an issue price of HK$0.011 each were issued
to an independent third party. Each of the
warrants confers rights to the registered holder
to subscribe for one new share of the Company
in cash at an initial subscription price of HK$0.29
per share, subject to adjustments, up to the
amount of HK$67,164,000 at any time during
the period of two years from the date of issue.

28 EXR -REERRE (£)

() B=AE(#&

RERERITRE (&)

(iii)

(iv)

HE-_ZZN\F+=
A=+—BIEE B
1% 14920,000% 7T 2 18
& E77{£2,000,000
MR IEE mMBEITZ
EREECIEITLZH
%15 48 2k 42,000,000
B - AR ER IR € - R B8
BEREEROEEKREH
RREBEHE 2 2BEE
#770,0008 T B A
BRRARE 2D EE
%o

WoBEAFLA=T
H - 89,398,156 1 —
TRLFLA-tAE
T2 RBEEE S
e

R F AR
ANB =+ — A

231,600,000 2 &
BEEERETESH
0.0MBILETT— %
BYE=ZF - BHRK
EEETHEEZHEAA
R AT R EETT B B
BGER NGRS
R REEER0.29
BT (Al T %) AER
SRE—RARQ R
M ERkeBERSIE
67,164,000 7T °
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
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(c) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

(vi)

On 8 September 2009, 10,000,000 new shares
of HK$0.1 each were issued for cash at HK$0.29
per share upon exercise of 10,000,000 warrants
by the registered holder for a total consideration
of HK$2,900,000. The excess by the subscription
price over the par value of the shares and the
related warrant reserve, totalling HK$2,010,000,
were credited to the share premium account of
the Company.

As at 31 December 2009, the Company had
221,600,000 warrants outstanding. The exercise
in full of such warrants would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in an
issue of 221,600,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company, including additional share
capital and share premium of approximately
HK$22,160,000 and HK$42,104,000 (before
expenses) respectively.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

28 EXR -REERRE (&)

() B=AE(#&

ZERERITRE (&)

(vi)

RZZEZAFHLAN
H - 10,000,0000% & A%
EE0. 1B T 2 # K5
HERLHAEANRAR
82,900,000/ T 17 1#
10,000,00017 R B HE 5
MR T H%0.2978 7T F LA
BT LABEUR € o %
MRBEREAEREH
RAREERESLZ
+ %4 $£2,010,000%
T BEABRRARAZ
R A7 348 (B BR o

RZZTEZNF+=A
e el = I NE/N =] )
RITE2RBREZE R
221,600,000 ° &
ZERBREBIZE R
KRR AGEEER
BT B EBEIE
17221,600,000f% A&
AREIEBK BEY
22,160,000 T 2 584N
AE 7N [242,104,00078 7T
(BrZ HAT) 25BN

03 {8 o

(d) HEzZHERAR

(i) K&
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FAOIKEEE ©
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 EXR-HERKRE (&)

(Continued)

(d) EEZMEERAR (&

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i) BEXfH#E

(ii) Capital reserve

(iii)

Capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate
of the share capital and share premium of a
subsidiary acquired through an exchange of
shares pursuant to a group reorganisation
(the "Reorganisation”) by which the Company
became the holding company of the other
companies comprising the Group on 28
September 2000.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the net
asset value of a subsidiary acquired through
an exchange of shares pursuant to the
Reorganisation.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if
(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

BEAFEREARNRE
TEBIRMEE  BHiR
EEEsHA([ER])
FEBR IR EEHE
RN AR B AR A K B% 15
BZEHNEZRE - BN=F
TZZFENA-_+NEB"
ANAREREAHEEAM
NRMAKAEE - WA
BIEEWEB AR /ER

A

(iii) #AEE

BABRBRERIEA AR
TEAERNEE BE
HRB BRI ES
MEBAREEFENE
Ho

REERE-NN—F
REDE (BER]) - &
ABERA 7 kAR IR -
BanA FaER AR
AT B B R 3OK IR
B RBABARRE
ik - & L5 R
(i) fH1& RET & 2 1
BE KEEEZA
HREAESINERR
& B BITIRA KRG
it 18 B ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Share option reserve
The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees
of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(q)(ii).

(v) Warrant reserve
The warrant reserve comprises the consideration
received from issuance of warrants.

(vi) Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Group's subsidiaries established and operated
in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of
their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the share capital/registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders/equity
owners.

(vii) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(u).
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28 EX -REERRE (&)

(d) FEZMERRAR (&

(iv) BREWRE

(v)

BRERBRERTA
NEMEBEREMER
TEBREHEN AT
18 ERIE M E2(g)(i)
B0 5 SR Y & BT R

X7
e

BIREEFE
RBEE B EEE
TTRBERZ M2 K
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(vi) EZEZGRE

REBEFBERRE A
S EERBIR REE
ZHBRRA/RERE
FE R RARIER
BEEMBRBRZEN (K
HBEFEERR)M
10% 85 20X F B AR
B BEEZREONESR
ER BB EME
ALk BZERRABER
SERERAD KRR
GIEERG EAT L

(vii) [E % #E
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 EX RERERE (&)

(Continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves (e) THDIKFAME
At 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount RZZEZNF+_A=1—
of reserves available for distribution to equity H Aok TFTAAFREK
shareholders of the Company was HK$Nil (2008: 2B RE A BB T (Z
HK$Nil). TEENFTET) °

(f) Capital management (fy EFXE®E
The Group's primary objective when managing REBEEREARZEE
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to BEAREAREEEFEL
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue BN BUATERRE
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for RHEOH REMERFES
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services ARHER - HEABEKR
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing Rk FEEERRRSEE
access to finance at a reasonable cost. B RAEEKRNRERE
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages RNEBEESRE At R EE
its capital structure to maintain a balance between BARRE LNHEFRES
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible A% BR [El e (18 5 7K F Al e
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages =) B R B ANAR R H
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and % B MR [ 2 PRI ER S - 1
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of B EELEER 2 B
changes in economic conditions. BERERE-
Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors BITEBO NREBAKH
its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net BIEFEBEALEREREE
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net RERNEE - BILKERARTF -
debt is defined as total debt (which includes trade BEETEREEE (AR #
and other payables, bank and other loans, current 5 FE AN BR SR N LA FE AN R E
taxation, amounts due to related companies and RITREME R KNI/ 'l"l'
subsidiaries, amount due to a director, and convertible B ENEABEARLKE AR
bonds), less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted AIIE - BT E R I KA
capital comprises all components of equity. BmRES)  RBEekBeSE

BEERB KHBEARNBEK
AREEIEA -
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(f) Capital management (Continued)
During 2009, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2008, was to maintain the adjusted
net debt-to-capital ratio at the lower end of the range
10% to 45%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to

134

reduce debt.

Current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related companies
Amount due to a director
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Bank and other loans

Obligations under finance leases
Current taxation

Non-current liabilities:
Convertible bonds

Total debt
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Adjusted net debt
Total (deficit)/equity
Adjusted capital

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio

MEBE:
ERREMEMNT
WENENE
TEEHE
FEHB R EIRIE
RITREMER
MERELER
KHHE

=

il

o
o

il

fef
fef
fef

il

FRBRE:
ARBRES

aER
RoRERRAEFEEE

KRRBEERE
(B#t) / ESRE
KRBEX

BRHEFEREALE

28 EX -REERRE (&)

() EXEE (&)

R-TT

— ==

M £

o —=< =

NE FEEHR
J\IF e 45 T 5

AEFBEABRFIEEER
L A 10% 45 % H) (K 18 o
BTHBIABRLE K&
BT gE AR DIk TR R 2 K&
B BT REEAR TR
RORREFEEREXE L

BEWRIE-
The Group The Company

K VN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
“EENFE —ZT\F ZBENF _ITIT)N\F
TR TET Tz TR
923,355 853,555 4,248 1,905
47,674 2,502 = -
135 - - -
- - 7,605 7,656
267,341 358,575 - -
- 154 - -
7,289 26,030 - -
1,245,794 1,240,816 11,853 9,561
767,427 706,913 767,421 706,913
2,013,221 1,947,729 779,280 716,474
88,505 90,371 44 8
1,924,716 1,857,358 779,236 716,466
(34,963) (11,301) (314,935) 20,771
(34,963) (11,301) (314,935) 20,771
N/ATER NATER NATER 3,449%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

ARTREEANE LTS
TESRIBEOEARBH o
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29 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 29 UBBEZF2BRAERS

TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of attracting and retaining quality personnel and
providing incentives to eligible participants, including any
directors, employees, consultants and service providers of
the Group and any persons or entities having business with
the Group. The scheme was introduced on 6 November
2001 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the scheme shall not exceed
10% of the number of issued shares of the Company at 6
November 2001 (“General Limit”) unless its shareholders
in general meeting revise this limit. The General Limit
was revised to 40,922,250 shares at a Special General
Meeting (“SGM") of the Company held on 15 June 2004.
The General Limit was further revised at the Annual
General Meetings of the Company on 8 January 2007,
6 June 2008 and 19 June 2009 to 49,106,695 shares,
96,334,085 shares and 115,824,085 shares respectively.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the aggregate number of
shares issued or issuable under the scheme and any other
scheme(s) of the Company shall not exceed 30% of its
issued share capital from time to time.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by
the grantee within 21 days from the date of the offer. The
exercise period of the share options granted (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised) is determinable by the directors
of the Company, and such period of time shall not be later
than 6 November 2011.

ARRARRILT —(EBREE
BHERKSI REEEEAR I
RAEBERSEERMEE - ZFA
ITERREAKBZENES B8
B N RS R - AR AR B
BEBERZEMALHESR -
AN —FZE—F+—AXH
1T BRRITREHIERT SN 5&aT
E RN & BEF0FAB R

BIEZET 8 AT RE = 2 BB AR
BRZERBRHEE THEBEA
AKRARIR—EE—F+—HAH
ZBEETERHOMI0% ([—RER
) BRIFEARARBBERBEREK
2 HEFTZBRERSERR - — &
REER_-_ZEENF<A+HA
BT ZARBFRRRERNEEH
#540,922, 250 oA EE
+tF—ANB ZEZNFA
ANABRZEEAFAATALAER
TZARBIBRERAFREG  — K
PR %8 X 2 5| & %71 &49,106,695
B A% 15 ~ 96,334,085 I 1D &
115,824,0850% B 1 o TN i £ XCPT
- BRIEZETEI RA R R E
ET I AT R TR A FEIT 2R MD
BB NEBBARRTEE%TT
f& AR Z230% °

AR AR R R E Z ) B HIE21
HAZRABOR 2 BE - FTIX
R 2 TER (B IR
RITEMZ&ERAH (1EF))
TIRMARREEETE  Em A%
HRIABEN-_Z—F+—A
A=K
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(KETTHE)

29 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
The exercise price of the share options shall be the higher
of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (iii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
(subject to scheme adjustments).

29 URHBNZBRARS

Details of movements in share options granted under the

scheme:
Name of Exercise
participants Date of grant price
SaENE RHBH ke
HKS
AT
Directors
B2
Mr. Hu Yangxiong 15 Jan 2008 0.74
BEELE —EENE
—AThH
Mr. Leung Siu Kuen 15 Jan 2008 0.74
RhiExE BRI\
—AThH
Mr. Li Haogang 15 Jan 2008 0.74
FRARE It =98-S
—AThAH
Mr. Qu Jiagi 15 Jan 2008 0.74
MEEEL —ZENE
-ATIA
Mr. Sha Yingjie 15 Jan 2008 0.74
DRGSR E —ZZNE
—AThH
Consultants 23 Feb 2004 0.54
R —RIME
—A=t=H
26 Mar 2004 0.463
ZEEmE
ZA=txA
15 Jan 2008 0.74
—ZET)\E
—RTIA

136

Vesting and
exercise period

BERTEY

16 Jan 2008 to 15 Jan 2010
“ZE\E-At+RAZE
“E-F%-R+HA
16 Jan 2008 to 15 Jan 2010
ZZT\E-A+/HE
ZE-TF-A+RA
16 Jan 2008 to 15 Jan 2010
“ZE\E-A+REE
—Z-ZF-A1+1A
16 Jan 2008 to 15 Jan 2010
“EE\E-Af+REE
—Z-ZF-A11A
16 Jan 2008 to 15 Jan 2010
“ZE\E-At+RAZE
“E-F%-R+HA
23 Feb 2004 to 22 Feb 2009
“ZERE-A=t=RE
ZEENFZRZTZH
26 Mar 2004 to 25 Mar 2009
“EEMF=AZ1+BE
—EENFEZA-11H
16 Jan 2008 to 15 Jan 2010
“ZE\E-A+REE
—Z-ZF-A11A

(&
BREZITEEA/STNIISEL
W& (Wt EE - (i) AT
THZ BRI BROREEA
B 2 W {8 - R (i) H Bk 52 P 3% H
ZRBRAR ROV EBEEE T
BHmAEZERB 2 FHETHE
(FIRZAHEIEH R E)

REZFERL ZBREZZE
ESCECINE
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Lapsed Forfeited as at
1 January during during 31 December
2009 the year the year 2009
it 3 R-BEnE
i +2A=+-R
AT EREN ERRY AT R
3,154,000 - - 3,154,000
1,500,000 - (1,500,000) -
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
4,092,225 (4,092,225) - -
12,276,675 (12,276,675) - -
9,484,000 - - 9,484,000
36,506,900 (16,368,900) (1,500,000) 18,638,000
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29 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 29 URGBXNFZ2RERS

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (#&)

Mr. Leung Siu Kuen resigned as director of the Company on RKEXER_ZTZENF+ZA

11 December 2008. T-HBEEARREEHK-

Mr. Hu Yangxiong resigned as director of the Company on HEREEER-_Z—ZFF=AN

8 March 2010. ABFEARARRIESRS -

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed (a) FARHBERE MBI &K
during the year are as follows, whereby all options are RN FREBRENHINE
settled by physical delivery of shares: FARDETEMRI

Number of Contractual life
options Vesting conditions of options
BREYE BEKRHT BRESHNH
Options granted to directors:
RTEF2BERE:
—on 15 Jan 2008 10,654,000 Half year from 2 years
the date of grant
-RZTEENF—-A+ERA REREFF M
Options granted to employees
and consultants:
KTREE NERZ B :
—on 23 Feb 2004 4,092,225 Half year from 5 years
the date of grant
-RZEEMF_A=-+=H REREFF hEF
—on 26 Mar 2004 12,276,675 Half year from 5 years
the date of grant ﬁ
—-RZETMF=A=+H R REYEFE hF #
—on 15 Jan 2008 38,452,000 Half year from 2 years f,,
the date of grant 'l*l’
-RZTEENF—-A+EA REREFF M
Total share options 65,474,900
BB M A B
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CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (#&)
(b) The number of share options are as follows: (b) BREHEWLT:
2009 2008
Number Number
of options of options
—EENFE —EENEF
BREZE BREHE
At 1 January m—H—H 36,506,900 41,291,150
Exercised during the year FRITRE - (22,922,250)
Forfeited/lapsed during FREI R
the year (17,868,900) (30,968,000)
Granted during the year FAREE = 49,106,000
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 18,638,000 36,506,900
Exercisable at the end of the year F#RAJ1T{F 18,638,000 36,506,900

No share options were exercised during the year. The
weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year ended 31
December 2008 was HK$0.45.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had
exercise price of HK$0.74 (2008: HK$0.74, HK$0.54
and HK$0.463) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of half a month (2008: one year). All
the options were subsequently remained unexercised
and lapsed.
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FABEITEEIERAE-
RBEE_ZZNF+_A
=+t BUFEHEITER
REAE PR 1T 55 B B I A S 1S AR
B /50.45% 7T °

R-_EBEENF+_A=+—
HARITEBRENITEE
BOT4B T (ZEZTN\F:
0.747 7T~ 0.54%8 7T %.0.463
BT MR T AL
HAEXEA(ZZTT)N\F:
—F) FTBBRELGER
RFITERKRK-
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29 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (#&)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are

29 UROXFAF2Z2RERS

() BEREQAAERRBRR
PATR th B AP #R B 2 FAT 15 R
BHARBERLEDRILE
RENRERAE - EH
HEBREAERREHED
R-HRATHETERAER
HE-ERLPERTBK
BHA N NRIERERTT

incorporated into the model. ERERES R -

Fair value of share options and assumptions
EREALERRE

Fair value at measurement date

FAERMARE

Share price

B (B 18

Exercise price

1TE(E

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average volatility used in the model)
TEHAR 18 (AR B AR P A &9 N F 3R 18 51 R )
Option life

B AR HAIR

Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes)

ERBANE (RBEINEESREE)

2008
—RENE

HK$0.25
0.25% 7T
HK$0.74
0.748 7T
HK$0.74
0.74% 7T
94.164%
94.164%

2 years

&
1.89%-1.90%
1.89%%21.90%
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29 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in
the grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share option grants.

All the options lapsed at their expiry in January 2010.

29 URHBNZBRARS

(%)

() BREQAEBRRER

(%)

8 HY R 1R 2 A N SR 1R
(IRBERENMEFEHRT
HIRAE ) RIRERHZE
T R SRR i B0 TR HI B B
- FEETE R IRIBE
SEREFE - THERRNE
B EHAAEREEKE
-2

i B R AR B AR A% 15 A X
e R Bt EET RS
B R S B B 3 E R R
1 o 1 3% Hh 8 P 4 77 B2 T 35
B RS o

PMEBREER T —FF
— REimE R

30 EXFRERS
REBEZE_ZTZT L&+ = A
=+ HILEFE BEARE
39,070,000t Z SRTTE R M AH
A R #32,053,0007T 2 & =t 7 &
RIRITEEY —RBYE=FH-

BERBEERQAE

EE -RBHES  FEKINEMEH
ZRBEASEBER Z EFRARE
FEE ANEEMRMEAXZZER
BEAEBRNEEZSRARKRZ
B 75 B B B 3R ER R BB 1) 3Kt n
—|To

30 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2009, a bank loan of
RMB39,070,000 and accrued interest of RMB32,053,000
were assigned by the bank to an independent third party.

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31
VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group's
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices used by
the Group to manage these risks are described below.
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31 MXEBREERAAE
()

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (a) EERK

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and loan receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. The Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure
to perform their obligations as at 31 December 2009
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated
in the statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has formulated a defined fixed credit policy
and delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable regularly at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced. Retail sales are mainly on a cash
basis, by cash, debit card or credit card payments.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in relation to trade and other receivables, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

For loan receivables as set out in note 16, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each loan
receivable on a regular basis and the value of pledged
assets, if any, to ensure adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
government authority.

AEEZEERREZRA
B 5 Ko Ho A 8 WK A K FE
ER-ERECDHITEER
R WRHBEEAAINZ
ZEERR - R_TZENF
tT-A=t—H X2FH
BFTAREBITEAEEMIER
ERpEHREREERY
ZE=EE R MR
MR ZEEE 2RE
BE-REBEREEERR:
AEEEEEDHEREL
REFEBR LERE—HA
AE BEEEFEERSE:
MW EERMETEMER
RRFr ARERAEIRE B B A
HEH BT FHE I
AEEEREHREAHTH
et & IR E B AR 2 7]
Yo Bl 6 F8 - DA AR BE T AT IR
Bl 518 (F 2 SRR (B &5 18
U ARBZEERG
AEBEZ EERRC KER
L TEHETENURGHE
17 AR S CRRER
R e R B R B 2 AR
REEHFHIREP WA
5 5 3 B MR AR R K EL At FE R
RAEBEREERBRERE
W e

R EE1651 7R ) FE U & 3 -
AEEE RN SRERE
TR AT Uy O SRR K R A
MEE(FH)  ABERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

(i) The Group

2009

ZEERAE
Statement More
of than
financial Total 1 year
position  contractual Within 1 but less
carrying  undiscounted  year or on than
amount  cash flow demand 2 years

-£R

HERRE GAKAE AREXE  -ENL
REE REREAE xff BOREF
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HK$'000
T TiEn T THR

Trade and other payables EAERRARERNR 923,355 923,355 923,355 -
Amounts due to related companies ERBEATE 47,674 47,674 47,674 -
Amount due to a director EREFHE 135 135 135 -
Bank and other loans SOREHER 267,34 267,34 267,31 =
Obligations under finance leases BEREZEH - - - -
Current taxation THHE 7,289 7,289 7,289 -
Convertible bonds TERES 67421 125763 38,269 30,366

20321 2411557 1,284,063 30,366
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(&

(b)

REBE @B
AEEZBRSTEMNEZER
MkERZRBDESF
NERASEERTRRE
fH AENEHEERRAZ
MBETHE-

TERFINAEEERABER
HBEBHZBRTANINEE
o BERAEREA QKR
RAeRE(BREERAHL
MEREE - MEFR - AR
BERBREASZNERAE 2
B A R A& E R
NAAEEEBRERZZF
S

(i) #*&£H
2008
“FINE

Statement Mare

of than

finandial Total 1 year
More position  contractual Within 1 but less More
than camying  undiscounted  year or on than than
2 years amount cash flow demand 2 years 2 years

il

BHfRE  ANANE  SRELRE —EiE
WENL KAE ReREsE 2t BOREE AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T TiEn TiEn Fin FiEn FiEn
- 853,555 853,555 853,555 - -
= 2502 2502 2502 - -
- 358,575 358,575 358,575 - -
- 154 178 178 - -
- 26,030 26,030 26,030 - -
1,157,128 706,913 1,247,432 30,404 30,366 1,186,662
1,157,128 1,947,729 2,488,272 1,271,244 30,366 1,186,662
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 iIERREERAAE

VALUES (Continued) (&
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELER (&)
(ij) The Company (i) &Kz a
2009 2008
= 2 Z3INE
Statement More Statement More
of than of than
financial Total 1year financial Total 1 year
position  contractual Within 1 but less More position  contractual Within 1 but less More
carrying  undiscounted  year or on than than carrying  undiscounted year or on than than
amount  cash flow demand 2years 2 years amount cash flow demand 2 years 2 years
-£R —£R

HERRE  AHAKR  IRERE  -ENL BHiRE  ANARE  ARERE -FNE
HEE RERELE % BORRE  MENL FEE ReRENE X BIRAE AENL
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000  HKEOOO  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000
T FiEn Fin Fin Fin TR TR TR TR TR

Accrued expenses and other payables  ExFER RE MR 4208 4208 4208 - - 1,905 1,905 1,905 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBLAGE 7,605 7,605 7,605 - - 7,656 7,656 7,656 - -
Convertible bonds ThRES 767,421 1,225,763 38,269 30,366 1,157,128 706,913 1,247,432 30,404 30,366 1,186,662

79280 1,237,616 50,122 30,366 1,157,128 716474 1,256,993 39,95 30,366 1,186,662

(c) Interest rate risk () A=k
The Group has no significant interest bearing assets REBBRIBITHET AR IEIR
other than cash at banks and loan receivables. BN EmE R EEE-
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from AEBZHNERRFEFERES
bank loans. These borrowings at variable rates and at RITER IR AT X L%
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate BEEMEBITZEEELRE
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. o Rl&EZEERENER

B e RSB R E K -
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#
#
_
o
o

PESRERABRAR

143




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 iIEREERAAE

VALUES (Continued) (%)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) () F=mEBE (£&)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIEHLE
The following table details the interest rate TRANREBEREAR
profile of the Group's and the Company’s net AEEFENRE B
borrowings at the reporting date. Z MR
2009 2008
“EENE —ZIN\F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BBRA= ERAIE
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FhEL TAT
Fixed rate borrowings: BEEfZEE:
Obligations under finance leases REMECER - 5.58% 154
Bank and other loans RITREBER 6.12%-13% 147,184 7.29% 317,646
Convertible bonds BRES 16.26% 767,427 16.32% 706,913
914,611 1,024,713
Variable rate borrowings: FHHEEE:
Bank and other loans RITREBER 5.31%-7.2% 39247 5.31%-7.47% 40,929
- Total interest-bearing liabilities WEaEES 953,858 1,065,642
§ —— ——
5 Fixed rate interest-bearing assets: EEMEEE:
o .
K Loan receivables ERER 2%-7.839% (8,982) 2%-7.839% (20,979)
= — eeH B i
=]
E Variable rate interest-bearing assets: EBREREEE:
a Loan receivables LR 5.76% (883,223)  5.76%-7.47% (882,688)
§ Time deposits EHER - 3.15% (5,685)
2 Cash at banks RITEE (88,430) (83,738)
2
8 (971,653) (972,111)
2 7 _ valt
E Total interest-bearing assets MEAERE (980,635) (993,090)
w —\EEUE RO
o
2 Net interest-bearing e (8gE)/
E (assets)/liabilities BEFE (26,777) 72,552
2 — —
=
o
(U]
<
=
T
)
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 iIEREERAAE
VALUES (continued) (#&)

() F=mpk (&)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Other components of consolidated equity would
not be affected by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the reporting date and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The 10 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis as
for 2008.

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (ii) 5(7@ /:‘—’f 77
At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a —ZEENF+ AR
general increase/decrease of 10 basis points _—I— EREEE
in interest rates, with all other variables held B,/ T#H108 T
constant, would decrease/increase the Group's EREEMAIEZEHRA
loss after tax and accumulated losses by ERFETEZBAT
approximately HK$779,000 (2008: HK$778,000). AEERTEEBERR

BB A R 18
IN#779,000% 7T (=
T T )\ £ 778,000/
L) kG EmP 2 E
i ZB 49 RIS 52 7 R 42

=
- L

A ESURIE D AT TO R AR
MERFEN RS H %
£ UWEARZBEFEHRE
ZERBTAEZFRER
MmEE > LT TH10
EXTFREEEBRYES
T—FEHRE R
WTA¥$Z%EW$
B PTETT 25 -
ﬁ&\_7$ﬂ$ﬁﬂ
ZEREHELT o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M & .

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(i) Forecast transactions
The Group's presentation currency is Hong Kong
dollars.

The Group has certain foreign currency sales,
purchases and bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have hedging policy in
respect of the foreign currency risk. However,
management monitors the related foreign
currency risk exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency risk
exposure should the need arise.

(ii) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of receivables, payables and bank
borrowings held in currencies other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate, the Group ensures that the net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot
rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

By assessing the foreign currency risk, the effect
arising from reasonably possible changes in
the exchange rates of Renminbi against Hong
Kong dollars in the next twelve months was not
material to the results for the year, on the basis
that all other variables remain constant.
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(d)

ShEE B B

(i)

(ii)

BAXE
rEBZ2FEEAE

7T|:o

K& B2 E TN
E BEMRTEES
7N & B A & K SMME R
% o AN SR8 B BT & 5L
SINEE R B 7T 37 fa] 5 e
BE-RM EEE®
B ER A R HME B
TeEaEEREREREY
B RSN LB o

EEZEERERE
AREEBERE Y
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2 EWGRIAE - B 3B
RIBITEEmMS A&
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 iIEREERAAE

VALUES (Continued) (#&)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) SNERBR (£Z)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (iii) & %= B

The following table details the Group’'s and the TRAAREEREAR
Company's exposure at the reporting date to AR S B HAE A ME R
currency risk arising from recognised assets or ERNEEEIUINES
liabilities denominated in a currency other than FHEMERREENA
the functional currency of the entity to which BEEE 2 E%ER-
they relate. For presentation purposes, the HEFNEMHE Bk
amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong BELAE TR I A
Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at FRHREBZBEXHRE -
the year end date. Differences resulting from MEGINEE I B
the translation of the financial statements of EAREEZNEEES
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation ZEHZBIYABEL
currency are excluded. A e

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HERR (XBTIIR)
The Group %1 2009 2008
ZE3hE —ZE\E
United United

States dollars Renminbi States dollars Renminbi

Es AR¥ e ARE

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THx TR TR FiET
Trade and other receivables B 3 e A R - 75,215 - 59,452 -
Loan receivables R ER - 1,397,711 - 1,347,623 ﬁ
Amounts due from ERBEARNE =
related companies - 250 - - :
Amount due from a director fEliESFE - - - 78 i

Time deposits EEFA - - - 5,685
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkReEEEH - 88,042 9 84,578 'E
Trade and other payables ERERREMERR - (919,064) - (851,496) B
Amounts due to related companies ERBEARNE - (47,674) - (2,502) g
Amount due to a director ERHESHE - (135) - - o
Bank and other loans RITREMER = (267,341) (19,456) (339,119) 2‘5
Obligations under finance leases BEMEZEH - - - (154)

Current taxation RE#E - (7.289) - (26,030)

Overall net exposure REERR - 319,775 (19,447) 278,115
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 iIEREERAAE

VALUES (Continued) (%)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) SERBE(Z)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (iii) E%EE (E)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HNERR (SABRFIR)
The Company A 2009 2008
“ZEEINE “ZENE
United United
States dollars Renminbi States dollars Renminbi
£n ARE E AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TAR TER
Deposits and prepayments R REAHK - - - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries EYIHE D RIHE - = - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEER - - - -
Accrued expenses and EHERREMERR
other payables - - - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENHBRRFE - (1,085) - (1,136)
Overall net exposure BEAR = (1,085) - (1,136)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (iv) ST
The following table indicates the instantaneous TR REREBREEM
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and [B, [ A B B A AN
S accumulated losses) that would arise if foreign MAEERBREHEA
% exchange rates to which the Group has BRE b 2 B IR
§ significant exposure at the reporting date, R AEERTIEBE
E assuming all other risk variables remained (M EFEE)Z AR
£ constant. 2o
[a]
= 2009 2008
= HK$'000 HK$'000
g —BThE —ETNE
g THET FET
-
E United States dollars ETT
& - 5% strengthening of HK$ — R B IL5% - 812
= - 5% weakening of HK$ — 59 IT5% - (812)
=
g Renminbi AR
8 - 5% strengthening of HK$ — BB ITT5% (13,351) (11,611)
E ~ 5% weakening of HK$ —BBREIT5% 13,351 11,611
)
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date, including
inter-company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2008.

(e) Fair values

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities are not materially different from their
carrying amounts. Fair value estimates are made at
a specific point in time and are based on relevant
market information and information about the
financial assets and liabilities. These estimates are
subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and matters
of significant judgement and therefore cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions
could significantly affect the estimates.

32 COMMITMENTS

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2009 not provided for in the financial statements were
as follows:

ERTHERERE
-BEETEE

Contracted but not provided for:
—in respect of purchases of
fixed assets

31 MXEBREERAAE
()

(d)

(e)

SNERBR ()

(iv) SEMEZH (&)
BT R E EA
EREFFHUEHAES
AE B R IRE B BEE
ZHNER R 2 ZFEARE
EffEemT A 2
INERASE KA
HELIINEBEZ A
SEARFEERRIE
N EWFRIE - T B
B BINETG B 15
REREERYEBE
EZIER ZRE - DITIR
HoFT N\FHEHRZE
AEHETT o

A RE
rEEeREERABEZR
AEEERABETESEKE
B -NARBEHRENSERME
WIRBEEEMSELRE
TREERBEBEZERE
He-ZEMEETHEKD
W RAEERERE XA E
HIE AT e EEET o &
HREeHAHHEERNENR
2 o

3

32 EGF

(a)

RZFBZANFTA=1—
A REFHHREPERZ

R EAFREFHIBOT
The Group
AEE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EThE —EENF
FH&T FHETT
5,208 6,804
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32 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

150

(b)

32 AiE (&)

At 31 December 2009, the total future minimum lease (b) RZZEZENF+ZA=1+—
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were H RBREFAATHEZ&EMHE
payable as follows: EERRENZHEHERN
RIBRAT
The Group
iy 1
2009 2008

“EENE —EENE

Motor Motor
Properties vehicles Total Properties vehicles Total
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LS ERTH &t mE ERTE @i
TER TER TER FAL FAL FAL
Within 1 year —ER 101,671 137 101,808 95,701 1,896 97,597
After 1 year but within 5 years —F%BEFR 116,385 - 116,385 193,676 136 193,812
After 5 years TEk 202,557 - 202,557 229,634 - 229,634
420,613 137 420,750 519,011 2,032 521,043

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties and motor vehicles held under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
1 to 20 years, at the end of which period all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

AEERBRLEMEERAH
EWEREHT A -ZFH
E-RIFB/P—FE=-+
F o JERFTB RS A EH
BE-SREEXTEEX
EHE-
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32 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 32 A (&)

() At 31 December 2009, the total future minimum (0 RZZEZAF+ZA=+-—
sublease payments under non-cancellable operating H REFATHE D HEE
subleases were receivable as follows: EHETREREN Z&ED

MUK BRENT
The Group
rEEH
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EENEF
FTERT FHET
Within 1 year —F R 13,728 7,441
After 1 year but —FRERAFA

within 5 years 44,106 18,983
After 5 years hF® 24,513 509
82,347 26,933
The Group subleases out shopping areas in the RAAGIREBREHESHERA
department stores and office premises under BERARZEYREPAE-
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial ZEME—RULT R —
period of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew FE+F WEEREREZEE
the lease after that date at which time all terms B ERAARREAER
are renegotiated. Lease payments receivable are FE-MHEHRNZEENK
fixed during the lease terms. Certain leases include EEEMN -ETHEBSWN

contingent rentals. %

B
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B
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

152

(a) Litigation

(i)

On 7 September 2005, Century Ginwa
together with other four unrelated parties
(collectively known as the “Guarantor "),
entered into guarantee contracts with a bank
to provide guarantees to secure a bank loan of
RMB24,000,000, which was interest-bearing at
6.138% per annum, granted to an unrelated
party (the “Borrower |”) for a period from 7
September 2005 to 6 June 2006. The guarantee
period given by the Guarantor | was two years
starting from 6 June 2006. By default of the
Borrower |, a court judgement was obtained
by the bank on 30 October 2006 against the
Guarantor | for the repayment of the bank
loan together with interest and administrative
expenses thereon. On 31 August 2008,
Ginwa Investments entered into a counter-
indemnity agreement with Century Ginwa to
indemnify it against any loss that may arise
from this guarantee. On 31 December 2009,
the outstanding balance of the bank loan was
approximately RMB18,249,000.

The directors consider that, given the nature of
the claims and the preliminary status of these
proceedings, it is not possible to estimate the
eventual outcome of the claims with reasonable
certainty at this stage. In addition, Ginwa
Investments has agreed to indemnify Century
Ginwa against any loss that may arise from this
guarantee and therefore, no provision for penalty
interest or other damages has been made in
these financial statements.

33 HREE

(a)

#F B

(i)

R-_ZEEZRFHLALt
A e EEREA
Mg mRE AT (H
EHATERAIL
H—FTiRITEIIRE
AR A—EBEAL
(TERAI) MZIRTT
B AR®24,000,000
TLREER  ZE R
FHEE6.138% B
FHEBE-_TZTAFAN
AtHBZEZ —_FTZF X
FRANBIE-ERA
48 T 2 IRFEHAR B H#
—EEXRFARNANA
B E - BB R ALE
4 ZBITR TR
F+A=1+BHBRER
HE ERERAEER
R ZBITE R EE
FMEARBEBITHE
A-RZZFTZENF/N\A
—t+—B &£{ERER
ST L RBIER
o A E B EARER
A REEE CEMEX -
R-ZEZENF+ A
=+—8 $RITEZK
EERBHAARK
18,249,0007T °

E=Rm ENELE
REVMEE A S5 LA A
1) BE 1) 2 B B IO ER B
REES B AR EEH
BUHBRASEER
AN ERERE Y
WA S IEMEATERA
BEELEZEMEBER H
Itk 5% S B 765 A 7 U 4 9
I AR B E b
P
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 33 FEB(#E)
(a) Litigation (Continued) (a) &Fad (&)

(i)  Century Ginwa had unsettled bank loan principal (i) tLESTERRRITER
of RMB100 out of an original bank loan amount %58 A K#80,000,000
of RMB80,000,000, which was interest-bearing T (RFTEERTES
and derived a RMB9,350,000 late settlement A R #9,350,0007T 2
interest payable. By default of Century Ginwa, %80 5 R R A LB H
a court judgment was obtained by the bank ZAREMRITERES
against Century Ginwa for the repayment ER/RAR®100T A
of unsettled bank loan together with late 42 & TEHE R 3KIE -
settlement interest thereon. RITEBAR I EH A

SEABEREMNRT
B 5RE Rl 8 H R SR

B
On 11 December 2009, the bank entered into RZZEZENF+ZA
a negotiation agreement with Century Ginwa, +—RH RITHEMTLES
in which Century Ginwa agreed to settle the TERI M BER & 0 ',
unsettled bank loan principal RMB100 and I e EREEE
all legal and other fees incurred and on the REMBRITERA
same day, the amount was fully settled, while ARBI100TRFIEE
the bank waived the late settlement interest EEMZA 2 EERE
of RMB9,350,000. The case was closed on 14 MwER FHRLBEE
December 2009. BEN MRTAFRR

BHERMNBE AR
9,350,0007T ° :% & 15
R-ZBEZENFE+ A

THHER

(b) Financial guarantees issued (b) MR
(i) On 18 April 2006, Century Ginwa, together with () RZEZFEXRFHATN "
other three unrelated parties (collectively known H e EEREA -
as the “Guarantor II”), entered into guarantee =EFEEEAT (KA W
contracts with a bank to provide guarantees to BATERAINLD) ®& |

secure a bank loan of RMB13,460,000 (“First —FIRITERFTREA

Bank Loan”), which was interest-bearing at Rl A—FTEBEER A 'E
5.22% per annum, granted to an unrelated (MERAN]D) MZIRTT =
company (the “Borrower II”) for a period of six ERAK®13,460,000 i
months from 27 April 2006 to 27 October 2006. T ([E—BH])RMHE o
The guarantee period given by the Guarantor Il BR ZEFRHFNEX
was two years starting from 27 October 2006. 535.22%  EFHR B

“EERFNA -+t
BRREZZZTF1+A
—ttBHIEAHNAE
A ERANGL T 2R
BHAAR —TTNF
+AZ+tEHERE-
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

154

(i)

On 27 October 2006, the Borrower |l
negotiated with the bank for a bank loan of
RMB12,000,000 (“Second Bank Loan"”) which
was interest-bearing at 5.58% per annum, for
a further six months until 26 April 2007 to
repay the First Bank Loan, and the First Bank
Loan was then fully settled. Under the new
loan agreement, the guarantee period given by
the Guarantor Il was extended for a further six
months until 26 April 2009.

On 23 April 2008, the Borrower Il negotiated
with the bank for another loan of
RMB4,500,000, which was interest-bearing
at 7.227% per annum, for a further eighteen
months until 22 October 2008 to repay the
Second Bank Loan. Under the new loan
agreement, the guarantee period given by the
Guarantor Il was extended for a further eighteen
months until 23 October 2010. On 31 August
2008, Ginwa Investments entered into a counter-
indemnity agreement with Century Ginwa to
indemnify it against any loss that may arise
from this guarantee. On 31 December 2009, the
amount was fully settled.
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

(i)

On 30 June 2008, Century Ginwa, together
with Ginwa Investments (collectively known as
the “Guarantor "), entered into guarantee
contracts with a bank to provide guarantees to
secure a bank loan of RMB90,000,000, which
was interest-bearing at 9.486% per annum,
granted to PREAFH A EEER A F (the
“Borrower llI") for a period from 30 June 2008
to 31 July 2008. The guarantee period given by
the Guarantor lll was two years starting from
31 July 2008. Ginwa Investments has equity
interests in PREGFTH REEEFR A F. On 31
August 2008, Ginwa Investments entered into
a counter-indemnity agreement with Century
Ginwa to indemnify it against any loss that may
arise from this guarantee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

156

(b) Financial guarantees issued (Continued)
(i) On 29 September 2007, Century Ginwa

entered into guarantee contracts with a bank
to provide guarantees to secure a bank loan of
RMB18,900,000 (“Third Bank Loan”), which
was interest bearing at 9.534% per annum,
granted to Ginwa Investments for a period from
29 September 2007 to 28 September 2008. The
guarantee period given by Century Ginwa was
two years starting from 28 September 2008. On
31 August 2008, Ginwa Investments entered into
a counter-indemnity agreement with Century
Ginwa to indemnify it against any loss that may
arise from this guarantee. On 29 September
2008, Ginwa Investments negotiated with
the bank to extend the loan period for eleven
months until 28 August 2009, with interest
bearing at 15.3421% per annum. The guarantee
period given by Century Ginwa was extended for
eleven months until 28 August 2011.

On 28 August 2009, Ginwa Investments
negotiated with the bank for another loan of
RMB17,000,000, which was interest bearing
at 10.4274% per annum, for a further twelve
months until 27 August 2010 to repay the Third
Bank Loan. Under the new loan agreement, the
guarantee period given by Century Ginwa was
revised to be valid until 27 August 2010. On 31
December 2009, the outstanding balance of the
bank loan was RMB17,000,000.
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33 REE A
(b) BIBERZHE (&)

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2009, the directors consider
that Ginwa Investments will settle the amount
in the near future and any claim made by the
bank to Century Ginwa is unlikely. Therefore, a
provision for penalty interest or other damages
has not been made in these financial statements.

(c) Contingent liabilities in respect of income tax
and business tax

(i)

Included in the interest income from Ginwa
Investments as noted in note 34(c), there
was an amount of RMB22,889,000 (2008:
RMB9,029,000) earned for compensating
interest payment to PRC banks relating to loans
borrowed for lending to Ginwa Investments.
According to a PRC tax circular “Guoshuifa
(2002) No. 13", such interest income is
exempted from the PRC business tax if the
lending company, Century Ginwa, is a finance
company of the Group. However, there is no
clear definition of the term “finance company
of the group” in the circular. Thus, there is
a risk that the PRC tax bureau may interpret
that Century Ginwa does not qualify as a
“finance company of the group”, in which

(iii)
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resulting in an additional business tax provision HtLEERERT .
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

158

(c) Contingent liabilities in respect of income tax
and business tax (Continued)

(i)

According to Article 47 of the Enterprise Income
Tax Law, if an enterprise makes arrangements for
unreasonable commercial purposes for reducing
its taxable income, the PRC tax authority has the
right to make an adjustment in accordance with
reasonable methods as it thinks fit. Thus, for
the interest free portion of the loan receivable
from Ginwa Investments as in note 16, there
is a risk that the PRC tax bureau may consider
it as a provision of funding without reasonable
commercial purposes which aims to reduce the
Group’s taxable income. The tax bureau may
deem the interest income of the Group for the
interest free portion of the loan at market rate
and calculated as RMB22,404,000, resulting in
additional enterprise income tax and business tax
provision of RMB5,321,000 and RMB1,120,000
respectively.
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34 MATERIAL CONNECTED AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions with key management personnel
All key management personnel are directors of the
Company and their remuneration is disclosed in note
8(a).

(b) Certain bank borrowings of the Group secured by
guarantees from certain connected parties are as
follows:

xRS ENE
LBERRAT]
(r=gl)

TEdE (K@) KD

Xian Ya Jian International Golf
Company Limited
("Ya Jian")

Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc.
("Ginwa Enterprise”) together

with Mr. Wu Yijian MR—BELE
Ginwa Enterprise e
Ginwa Investments together with & 7E1% & K& & /£ B
SEEBREXBEBRAF RNBIEBRAR A
Ginwa Investments together SERERDRE
with Ya Jian
Ginwa Investments BIERE

3 EXBERBBMALIXRS

(a) BEREBEAEBZXRS
AEMBREEABERAR
RAZEE MMM EE
WE K EE 8(a) ©

(b) REEETRITEEHRAT

BRAR ([&EdR%])

WAL 2 RIRIEE S
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—gBRE  —TINF
Fi# T
= 95,628
= 15,917
39,361 71,057
28,874 56,142
39,247 40,929
78,949 78,902
186,431 358,575
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34 MATERIAL CONNECTED AND RELATED 3 EXRAERBBALIRS

PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (#%&)

(¢) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial () BRTEVBRROEMM T
statements, the Group had the following significant BN REBRERND
connected transactions during the year: EINATERBEERS:

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$"000
—EENFE ZEENF
FERT FAET
Fixed assets sold to MAZELSEEm
At EEmERT EERBBERAF
ARmAR AT (“Xan Yipin”) (IAZER])HEZ
& 7 & E 114 -
Interest receivable from Ginwa Rl ERERE
Investments 50,824 19,269
Inventories sold to Xian Yipin MAZEmELIFE 4,115 -
Rent and management fee ERAELZER2EE R
receivable from Xian Yipin EREER 7,307 -
Rent paid to Ginwa Enterprise I TFefttEsAe - 7,268
Repairs and maintenance fee Xt &RERF2HEER
paid to Ginwa Hi-Tech REEH - 673
Ya Jian, Ginwa Enterprise, Ginwa Investments, & & ERR—BEERGE &
BB AOHEE AR AR, Xian Yipin and Ginwa Hi-Tech TEE - IERE S TEEE
are connected persons to the Group by virtue of Mr. KBEBRAR AL HEMR
Wu Yijian's equity interests in them. Mr. Wu Yijian RetaifiEBRAER
- resigned as the chairman and director of the Company ZERNRAAEEZEEA
g on 28 May 2008, and remained a director of certain TR —BEAR-_ZTEN
H of the Group's subsidiaries. FRAZHN\BBEARARQA
L TERES WNHAXEE
ETHEARES-
<
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3 EXBERBBMALIXRS
(%)

34 MATERIAL CONNECTED AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Other related party transactions (d) HtEBALRS

On 25 September 2007, the Group's wholly-owned
subsidiary, China Rich International Management
Limited (“China Rich”) entered into an acquisition
agreement with Ginwa Investments in which China
Rich agreed to acquire and Ginwa Investments
agreed to dispose of a 76.43% equity interest
in Century Ginwa owned by Ginwa Investments
at a consideration of RMB180,000,000 (the “CG
Acquisition”). On the same day, the Company
also entered into an agreement with Best Mineral
Resources Limited (“Best Mineral”) and Mr. Wu (the
"BM Agreement”), pursuant to which Best Mineral
agreed to (i) assist the Company, China Rich and their
agents and advisers in obtaining the right to access
the books, records and other related documents
of Century Ginwa; (ii) procure Century Ginwa to
assist the Company, China Rich and their agents and
advisers in their due diligence review; (iii) provide the
relevant information and files upon request by the
Company, China Rich and their agents and advisers;
and (iv) assist the Company in drafting the Acquisition
Agreement, and in consideration of Best Mineral’s
provision of the Profit Guarantee and the Repayment
Guarantee, the Company agreed to issue convertible
bonds in a principal amount of HK$1,231,612,200
to Best Mineral upon the completion of the CG
Acquisition.

Upon completion of the acquisition agreement, Ginwa
Investments shall be obliged to repay the amount due
to Century Ginwa to Century Ginwa within a period
of five years commencing from the completion of the
Acquisition with interest at the five-year lending rate
published by the Bank of China, the PRC as at the
date of completion of the CG Acquisition (see also
note 16(c)(ii)).

RZZETLtFHLAZ+H
H AXEE2EWBQF®B
EHEBREEBRAA([#4
E|)HASHEREETE M
WEmZ - KBEHEAD
HEREBEWEmMSERE
AELEERANEL 2
TEM76.43% B/ AED R
& & AR %180,000,0007T
(TCGWE])-AA AR
A EZBest Mineral Resources
Limited ([ Best Mineral | ) &
REEZTE Dz ([BM
WaEl) BRI, Best
Mineral[@ &) B A A &
HEE N B ARFR A B R R L
SRt eERM - L8
KN CEAth B BRI RER] ¢ (i)
KL SERBBARRA
WmERENRE A BERET
EBAE: (INEAQA A
FEREMRIE AEEEMERE
HBERER RER &iv)iH
BARRIREWEHZ M
XA )% B F|Best Mineral
B IR 58 s I R AR B B R
% REECGUHETKER
Best Mineral#171— ¢ % A
1,231,612,2007%8 JT ) A] #2
IRIEH -

BWREHETK 2EERE
WERWEETEK B B A
AN LCGUEEERE A
BITBEMOAFERE RN
S EEERNTLEST
SRIB (AR aE16(c)i)) »
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34 MATERIAL CONNECTED AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

162

(d) Other related party transactions (Continued)

(e)

Since Ginwa Investments is 60% owned by Mr. Wu,
being an executive director of the Company before
he resigned on 28 May 2008, Ginwa Investments is
a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
entering into of the acquisition agreement between
Ginwa Investments and China Rich, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, constitutes a non-
exempted connected transaction. Best Mineral, is the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Best Mineral
is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
it being a substantial shareholder, and the entering
into of the BM Agreement among the Company, Best
Mineral and Mr. Wu therefore constitutes a non-
exempted connected transaction. Mr. Qu Jiaqgi, Mr. Li
Haogang and Mr. Sha Yingjie, executive directors of
the Company, are also executive directors and senior
staff of Century Ginwa.

These transactions were approved in the SGM held
on 17 January 2008. The indirect shareholding of Mr.
Wu ceased in June 2008. Approvals were granted
by related China government authorities on the CG
Acquisition on 31 August 2008.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
statements of financial position and in notes 14, 16,
19 and 20.
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35 NON-ADJUSTING SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2009.

(a)

(b)

(©

On a special general meeting held on 22 December
2009, the Company’s shareholders approved an open
offer on the basis of one share for every two shares to
allot and issue 584,120,426 shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.1 per share.

The open offer was completed on 18 January 2010.

On 4 January 2010, Century Ginwa reached an
agreement with an independent third party for
the repayment of loan in an aggregate amount of
RMB71,123,000. The loan is now interest free and
repayable by 18 monthly instalments to June 2011.
No adjustments have been made to these financial
statements as a result of this repayment agreement
and therefore the loan is presented as a current
liability as at the reporting date.

On 20 February 2010, China King Management
Limited (“China King”), a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a memorandum of understanding
("MOU") with Ginwa Hi-Tech, a connected person
of the Group, for China King's proposed acquisition
from Ginwa Hi-Tech the entire equity interest in two
companies and 51% of the equity interest in another
company, all of them are established in the PRC and
are principally engaged in operation of department
stores in the PRC.

On the same day, another MOU was entered into
between the Company and an independent third
party, for the proposed issuance of convertible
bonds by the Company and grant of warrant to the
independent third party.

Details are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 4 February 2010 and 24
February 2010.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TatE)

36 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The management had made the following estimates
and assumptions in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies, which are described in note 2(b), that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities as
discussed below.

(a)

(b)

164

Useful lives of fixed assets and depreciation
The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation for the Group’s
fixed assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of fixed assets of
similar nature and functions.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature.

The net realisable value of inventories could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer
preferences or competitor actions in response to
severe consumer product industry cycles. Management
reassesses these estimates at each reporting date.
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36 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Allowances for doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required.

Income taxes

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in
the PRC. Significant estimation and judgement are
required in determining the amount of the provision
for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes.
There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final outcome
of tax assessment is different from the carrying
amounts of tax provision, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

36 HETNEEFHBEERR
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37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 37 EREMEBRARBE=Z
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EAFEFTZA=+—HI
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE FEEMNSE - %ﬁﬁﬁu
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 RERENBERE
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HEZMZSUBEREBH &5
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new EMAGEMGT TIRREE
standards and Interpretations which are not yet effective —EENFFT A=t —HILHF
for the year ended 31 December 2009 and which have not ER R Y T NN B e S |
been adopted in these financial statements. BMER] - SR R 2

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RT5 B85
ZEMBZ
S HBEEXR
Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards 1 January 2010
(BAMBHRELER) B158 2B BRRB (FEEUTBHRELER) —_T-FTF
—HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment 1 January 2010
(BEMBMERER]) B2 21E5] RO K —T-FF
—HA—H
HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business combinations 1 July 2009
g (BAMBREED) F35% (LEET)  EBadt —TENF
2 +tHA—H
2
E HKFRS 9, Financial instruments: Classification and measurement 1 January 2013
£ (BEEMBHREER) Fo9 @M TE - DBEKFE —T—=F
—HA—H
HKAS 24 (Revised), Related party disclosures 1 January 2011
(BB EFHER) F245 (KIEFT)  BEHHE —T——%
—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements 1 July 2009
(BB EFER) F275R 287 REe MBI BRER —TENF
+tHA—H

CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

166




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % 3| &R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& it &

37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (Continued)

CEBEMERNRBE=F
EANF+ZA=1t—HL
FEERBIEE - #HEA
RERENEESE (&)

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RT5 A
ZEERZ
SHBEX

Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement
— Eligible hedged items 1 July 2009
(BEGFTER) F39F 2B eI A - BRAKFE—GEREFIER —ZETNEF
+HA—H
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners 1 July 2009
(BE (BEVBHREZREZEG)RE) 217 REBADKIREEE —ETNF
+tHA—H
HK(IFRIC) = Int 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities and equity instruments 1 July 2010
(BA (AR BmEREZEES)RE) 2195 THemBBARRATIA —E-FF
+H—H

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

“EENF(BFBUBRSEL) 28

The Group is assessing the impact of these amendments in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
their adoption is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

38 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year's presentation.

38

1 July 2009 or
1 January 2010
—EETNF
+tA—H%
—E-FTF
—HA—H

AEELFAEZFETRIGEE
REREZZE - B AR AFAZ
FERIHAREZREXRB LY
BB EREE 2 AL
x o

BB F

%Bfﬁttﬁiyii‘«ﬁ%ﬁf\ﬂﬁ J//('/Tr?é-\
REBZZHFTA -
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Five Years Summary Financial Information (2005 - 2009)

IFHMBERNBE(ZSEZEEAFZE_ZFEZFTNEF)
For year ended 31 December 2009 B Z-_ZTZTNF+_A=1+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& Tt &

RESULTS
Period from
Year ended 1 uly
b
31 December 2005 to Year ended
BEt-A=+-ALFE 31 December 30 June
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—ZTRF
tﬂ = Bz
—ETRF —ZTHF
+ZA=+—8 ~NAZtA
“EENE “TT)\F “TTLHF iRl FFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THT FHT FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E3)
Turnover EE L
- Continuing operations ~RELEEK 542,237 301,052 115,656 34,681 -
- Discontinued operations —RIPEEE - - - 15,000 70,933
542,237 301,052 115,656 49,681 70,933
(Loss)/profit attributable RERES (BE),/
to equity shareholders kil
- Continuing operations —BREEEE (46,351) (545,172) 5,330 (23,701) (7,647)
- Discontinued operations —RIEREEK - - - (127,501) 9,822
(46,351) (545,172) 5,330 (151,202) 2,175
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
As at 31 December As at
- %-I':H:'I'_E 30 June
S 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
= RZETREF
2 —EZRE —ETNE —ETLF —EERF NA=1H
; HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3 TET FET TR FEL FET
c
<
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBDEE 1,781,377 1,732,412 106,574 74,611 210,626
[a]
= CURRENT ASSETS mYEE 196,881 204,016 354,986 53,275 22,874
2 DEDUCT: )
w
2 CURRENT LIABILITIES TEaE 1,245,794 1,240,816 103,719 41,650 30,829
(a]
c;D:' NET CURRENT TE(aE)/EE
= (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS T (1,048,913) (1,036,800) 251,267 11,625 (7,955)
§ TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRDERE
e CURRENT LIABILITIES 732,464 695,612 357,841 86,236 202,671
>
a DEDUCT: )
=2
= NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE 767,427 706,913 - 21,323 3,000
o N —
o NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BE)/BERE (34,963) (11,301) 357,841 64,913 199,671
=
I
v
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